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aKMMI AyauTs xayankepLuiniri KPMG Audit

LekTeyni cepikTecTik Limited Liability Partnership
050051 Anmarsl, [locTsik a-nei 180, Kazakhstan A25D6T5 Almaty, 180
Tel.: +7 (727) 298 0898 Dostyk Avenue

E-mail: company@kpmg.kz

Incependent Auditors Repart

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Agrarian Credit
Corporation Joint Stock Company

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Agrarian Credit Corporation Joint Stock
Company (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, the statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemnational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As at 31 December 2021, 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020 in the statement of
financial position for loans issued to corporate customers, classified in Stage 3, with the
gross camying amount of KZT 304,221,793 thousand, KZT 220,768,369 thousand and
KZT 166,459,436 thousand, respectively, the Company recognised an allowance for
expected coredit losses in the amount of KZT 62,564,653 thousand,
KZT 55,863,932 thousand and KZT 48,443,214 thousand, respectively. International
Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 2 “Financial instruments” requires the entity to use
reasonable and supportable information on which the assumptions and expectations are
based when measuring expected credit losses. We disagree with certain assumptions used
to estimate the expectad cash flows from the collateral realisation for credit-impaired loans
tc corporate customers and believe that the allowance for expected credit losses is
significantly understated. The effects of this departure from International Financial Reporting
Standards on the allowance for expected credit losses and other related items of the
statement of financial position, statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and changes in equity as at and for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 have not been determined.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Republic of Kazakhstan, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Expected credit losses (ECL) on loans to customers

Please refer to the Notes 3, 4 and 9 in the financial statements.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Loans to customers represent a | We analysed the key aspects of the Company's
significant portion of total assets and | methodology and policies related to the ECL
are stated net of an allowance for | estimate for compliance with the requirements
expected credit losses (ECL) that is | of IFRS 9, with the involvement of financial risk |
estimated on a regular basis and is | management specialists.

sensitive to assumptions used. |Tu analyse the adequacy of professional
The Company uses an ECL valuation | judgement and assumptions made by the
model, which requires management to | management in relation to the allowance for
apply professional judgement and to | ECL estimate, our audit procedures included
make assumptions related to the | the following:

following key areas:

—We tested design and operating

—limely identification of significant effectiveness of controls over allocation of
increase in credit risk and default loans to customers into credit risk stages.
events related to loans to

—For a sample of loans to customers, for

t ; : . 2
SUSITee which the potential changes in ECL estimate
—assessment of probability of default may have a significant impact on the |
(PD) and loss given default (LGD); financial statements, we tested whether

stages are correctly assigned by the
Company by analysing financial and non-
financial information, as well as assumptions
and professional judgements, applied by the
Company.

—assessment  of an add-on
adjustment to account for different
scenarios and forward-looking |
information; |

—expected cash flows forecast for

loans fo individuals, which are — Regarding the loans to customers assigned

to stages 1 and 2 of the credit risk, for which

credi-impaired. ECL is assessed collectively, we tested the
Due to the significant volume of loans design and implementation of the related
to customers and the related estimation models, as well as agreeing input data for
uncertainty, this area is a key audit calculation of PD and LGD with supporting
matter. documents on a sample basis.

—We also analysed the overall adequacy of
the adjustment to account for wvarious
scenarios and forward-looking information
and compared it with our estimates taking
into account the current and future economic
situation and operating conditions of
berrowers included in relevant grades.

—Far a sample of loans to individuals of stage
3 of credit risk, we critically assessed
assumptions used by the Company to
forecast future cash flows receivable,
including estimated proceeds from realisable
collateral and their timing, on the basis of our
understanding and available market
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information. We focused on the loans that
can potentially have the most significant
impact on the financial statemenis.

We also assessed whether the financial
statement disclosures appropriately reflect the
Company's exposure to credit risk,

Government Grants

Please refer to the Motes 3 (Government grants), 8, 9, 13, 14, 15, 18 in the financial

statements.

Key audit matter

During 2021 the Company obtained
financing from Government via receipts
of loans in the amount of KZT
105,029,196 thousand with interest rate
0.01% p.a. and issue of unsecured
coupon bonds with total nominal value
of KZT 5,000,000 thousand with a
coupon rate 7.10% p.a. Al inital
recognition these loans received and
debt securities issued were recognised
at fair values measured by applying
relevant market interest rates to
discount the contractual future cash
flows.

The difference of KZT 27,704,178
thousand between the fair value and the
nominal value of loans received and
debt securities issued was recognised
as a government grant, which is
subsequently recognised in profit or
loss wupon fulfiment of conditions
attached to respective financing.

In addition, in 2021, the Company

substantially modified loans previously
received from the parent company,
amounting to KZT 58,451,625
thousand, and received an additional
tranche of the loan of KZT 11,548,375
thousand, at an interest rate of 1.02%
p.a.

At initial recognition these loans were
recognised at fair value measured by
applying relevant market interest rates
to discount the future contractual cash
flows,

The difference of KZT 44,813,600 |

thousand between the fair value and
carrying amount of modified loans, and
the nominal value of the loan received
was recognised directly in equity as a
result of the transaction with the parent
company acfing as a shareholder.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures included assessing,
based on the overall substance of the
transaction, whether the difference between
consideration received and the fair value of the

loans received and debt securities issued
represents a government grant,
We compared assumptions used by

management to determine market rates applied
to calculate fair values of the loans received and
debt securities issued to available market
information.

We assessed the appropriateness of methods
used to calculate income from government
grants.

We also assessed whether the financial
statement disclosures appropriately reflect the
information in relation to government grants
recognised in the financial statements.
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The estimate of the fair value of the debt
securities issued and the loans received
requires management to exercise
significant professional  judgement.
Accounting judgements are also |
required in determining the presentation
and classification of the difference
between the nominal value and fair
value of loans received and debt
securities issued.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Mote 5 to the financial statements which describes that the
comparative information as at 31 December 2020, 1 January 2020 and for the year ended
31 December 2020 has been restated. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter Relating to Comparative Information

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019 (from which the statement of financial position as at
1 January 2020 has been derived), excluding the adjustments described in Note 5 to the
financial statements were audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements on 25 February 2021 and 10 April 2020.

As part of our audit of the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021, we audited the adjustments described in Note 5 that were applied to
restate the comparative information presented as at and for the year ended
31 December 2020 and the statement of financial position as at 1 January 2020. We were
not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 (not presented herein), other than
with respect to the adjustments described in Mole 5 to the financial statements. Accordingly,
we do nol express an opinion or any other form of assurance on those respective financial
stalements taken as a whole. However, in our opinion, the adjustments described in Note
5 are appropriate and have been properly applied.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report for 2021 but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon, The Annual report for 2021 is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial staterments or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary fo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to conlinue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditers’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that ware of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is:

Assel Urdabayeva

Certified Auditor

of the Republic of Kazakhslan
Auditor's Qualification Certificate
No. M@-0000096 of 27 August 2012

KPMG Audit LLC

State License to conduct audit # 0000021 daled 6 December 2006 issued by the Ministry
of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan

Sergey Dementyﬂv
General Director of' PMGA;J:;ELLLC
acting on the basis o Hnﬂhartﬂr =

18 May 2022
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2021
oo KZT
31 December 2020 At I January 2020

Note 31 December 2021 (restared) {restated)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 102,853,173 75,643,105 48,578,130
Loans to banks 8 12,708,512 14,941,678 45,063,483
Loans to customers 9 665,016,227 449,226,953 361,783,687
Finance lease receivables 10 9.626,642 -
Assets classified as held for sale 1,601,806 3,409.307 1,880,310
Investment secunnes 839325 670,250 604,896
Investment property 11 3,128,638 438,163 447,821
Property, plant and equipment 1,425,804 314,557 367,500
Intangible assets 624,683 245,064 254,653
Current corporate INCOME 14X A55e1s 1,785,126 - -
Deferred corporate income tax assets - 362,905 2.370,077
Oither assets 12 6,875,042 2,286,977 3,950,687
Total assets 806,484,978 547,538,959 465,301,244
Liabilities
Crue to the Shareholder 13 94,260,422 164,128,030 155,214,588
Due to credit instrutions - - 9876,118
Drebit securities issued 1 196,654,238 164,197 490 86,340 978
Diae to state and budget organizations 15 166,514,395 44,770,133 36,435,103
Current estimated habilities 1,205,120 447,545 373,023
Current corporate income tax liabilines - 49,345 135,976
Deeferred corporate income tax liabilines 17 6,614,451 - -
Government grants 18 40,515,010 12,471,564 21,251 923
Chiher Liabilities 16 29,731,901 1,737,203 2,260,291
Total liabilitics 535,795,637 387,801,310 311,888,000
Equity
Share capital 19 254,366,870 167,809,534 167,809,534
Reserve capital 19 11,237,766 5,339,751 5,339,751
Retamed earnings/ (accumulated losses) 5,084,805 (13,411,636) (19,736,041)
Total equity 270,689,441 159,737,649 153,413,244
Total liabilities and equity 806,484,978 547,538,959 465,301,244
Carrying value of one ordinary share (KZT) 1,066.85 048.65 910.98

M Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board,

member of the Management Board

Chief Accountant

’__.,.-"’

18 May 2022

The selected explanatory motes set onl on pages 14 fo 58 form an inteoral part of these condensed interim financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

for the twelve months ended 31 December 2021

00 KZT

Interest income calculated using effective interest method
Cash and cash equivalents

Loans to banks

Loans to customers

Investment secunties

Other interest income
Finance lease recevables

Interest expense
Due to the Shareholder

Dhe o the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan

Dhae o stare and budger organisations
Dhue to credit mstinutions

Debt secunnes i1ssued
Orither habilines

Met interest income

Expenses on credit losses

Net interest income net of expenses on credit losses

Net foreign exchange gain/ (loss)
Personnel expenses
Crther administranyve expenses

Net losses from modification of financial assets measured at

amortsed cost

Other expenses
MNon-interest expense

Profit before income tax

Corporate income fax expense
Profit for the year

For the twelve months
ended ar 31 December

Nore 20271 2020 (restated)
5,374,199 5,667,631

3,925,001 6,529 589

68,920,438 57,369,862

65,042 65,502

78,284,680 69,632,584

45,684 —

78,330,364 69,632,584
(10,513,105) (12,597,806}
(3.717.712) (5,293,600)

(3,183,328) (3,588,080
- (59,203)
{18,619,070) {10,596,697)
(27,145) (40,192)
(40,060,360) {32,175,578)

38,270,004 37,457,006
20 {77.530) i4,115,936)
38,192,474 33,341,070
9,089 [ L)
21 (4,373,762) (3,594, 708)
21 (2,635,235) (2,180.486)
(62,913) (2,430,216)
22 (20,232,159) (2,434,065)
(27,294,980) (10,640,185)

10,897,494 22,700,885
17 (2,202,454 (4,007 000
8,695,040 18,603,885

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

/M Deputy  Chatrperson of the Management  Board,

Kamakova Nazpul Sholpankulovna

The sefected explanatory nater set ot on pages 14 o 38 forme an integral part of these condensed interins finandgal statements.

l{F._._,..--""

member of the Management Board

Chief Accountant

10
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021

w0 KZT
For the twelve months
ended at 31 December
2020
Note 2021 {restated)
Profit for the vear 8,695,040 18,603,885
Other comprehensive income for the year = 5
8,695,040 18,603,885

Total comprehensive income for the year

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

Kamakova Nazgul Sholpankulovna /7’_5?/ Deputy  Charperson of the Management Board,

member of the Management Board

,f';’g‘mnc&"ﬂ;
P am AT g
A e

Zairullayeva Chief Accountant

18 May 2022

The selected excplanatory wotes ret oul on pager 14 fo 58 form an integral part of these condensed dnterim finandgal statements.

11
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2021

o0 KZ2T
For the twelve months
ended at 3] December

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activitics
Ineerist recerved 30913950 35,192,313
Interest paid (23,231, 439) {15,005,193)
Personnel expenses paid (3,860,103 (2,604,373
Orther operating cxpenses paid 12,150,611) (1,738,231}
Cash flows from operating activitics before changes in operating assets and
liahilities 10,671,797 15,844,516
Net (ingrease)| decregse in aperaling aisets
loans to banks 3,355,671 31,290,430
Lowams o customers (58.986,754) (92 486,705
(dther assers 674,030 TH2.552
MNet ncresef decreaice) fn aperating Sobifities
Ciovermment grants 10916435 3,598,780
Crther habilivies (2,537,985 (1,264,228)
Met cash used in operating activities before corporate income tax paid (35,906,797) (42,254,649)
Corporate income tax pawd 15,920,766) (3,716,566)
Met cash used in operating activities (41,827,563) (45,971,215)
Cash fMlows from investing activities
Addition facquisition of property, plant and equipment (35,726) (95,521}
Acguisition of intangible assets (39572 (22.585)
Dhe to besiress comlsimarion (mofe 6) 46,644 824 -
MNet cash used in investing activities 46,551,526 {118,104
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan 70,0400, 000 70,000,000
Repayment of loans from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan (70,0000, 004 (70, O Yy
Repayment of loans from credir insntutions - (9,800,000,
Progeeds from loans from the Sharcholder 18,591,199 33,523,182
Repayment of loans from the Sharcholder (52,182,190) [20,533,889)
Dichr secunnes ssued 83,951,457 76,206,439
Repayment of debt securitics issued (38,088 347 -
Procecds from loans from stare and budget organisations 35029196 12,856,780
Repayment of loans from state and budger organisations (10,152 235) (3.006,250)
Divadends pad (13,762,035) (16,034,036
Met cash from financing activities 22,487,043 73,152,226
Eftect of expected credir losses on cash and cash equivalents (938) 2,070
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 27,210,068 27,064,975
Cash and cash equivalents ar the beginning of the period 75,643,105 48,578,130
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 102,853,173 75,643,105

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Company:

/LM Deputy Chairperson of the Management Board,

member of the Management Board

Choef Accountant

The selected excplanatory notes set out on pages 14 fo 58 fornr an twtegral part of these condensed interinn fivandal statements,
13
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(in thowusands of tenge)
1. Reporting entity

Agrarian Credit Corporation Joint Stock Company (hereinafter, the "Company”) was estabhished by the Decree of the
Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 137 dated 25 January 2001 “On the Issues of the Agriculrural Sector Lending”
as a joint stock company in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Company is operating on the
basis of a license to carry out operations provided for by the banking legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, No. 5.2.24
dated 5 November 2013, issued by the Commirtee for Regulation and Supervision of the Financial Market and Financial
Institutions under the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan (“NBRK"). The activitics of the Company are regulated
by the Agency for Regulation and Development of the Financial Market of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Company’s pancipal actvity is implementation of the government programmes to support the agaocultural (agrasian)
sector; attraction of the domestic and foreign investments to implement its own projects in the agro-industral comples;
development and implementation of projects in the agro-industrial complex; sale of the pledge property and agrcultural
products received as repayment of the funds granted and to perform bank borrowing operations on the basis of the relevant
license; performance of the leasing activities, and other activities not prohibited by the legislanve acts that meet the goals and
objectives of the Company provided for by its Charter.

The Company's financing activities sttpulate specific requirements and restrictions on the use of funds. The interest rate on
loans provided is lower than the market rate due to implementation of the agncultural development programmes i the
Republic of Kazakhstan.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company had 17 registered branches in the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Prior to 18 March 2021, National Managing Holding Batterck Joint Stock Company owned 100% of the Company's shares,
In accordance with section 52 of the National Aetion Plan for Implementation of the Address of the President of Kazakhstan
dated 1 September 2020 “Kazakhstan in a New Reality: Time for Action,” approved by the Decree No.413 of the President
of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 14 September 2020, a single development institution has been established through the
merger of National Managing Holding Baiterek Joint Stock Company and KazAgro National Management Holding Jomt
Stock Company,

On 18 March 2021, 100% of the Company's shares were transferred to National Managing Holding Batterek Joint Stack
Company.

As at 31 December 2021, Nanonal Management Holding “Baiterek™ |SC (“Baiterek™ or “Sharcholder™) owns 100% of the
Company's shares,

The Company’s ultimate owner is the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

The Company’s registered office is: 11 Imanov Street, Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan.

Kazakhstan business environment

The Company’s operations are primanly located in Kazakhstan, Consequently, the Company is exposed to the economic and
financial markets of Kazakhstan which display charactenstics of an emerging market. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks
continue development, but are subject to varving interpretations and frequent changes which together wath other legal and
fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entities operating in Kazakhstan, Depreciation of the Kazakhstan
Tenge, volatlity in the global price of oil and the COVID-19 pandemic have also increased the level of uncertainty in the
business environment.

The recent geopolitical uncertainty around Russia and Ukrane has further elevated levels of cconomic uncertainty in
Kazakhstan,

These financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Kazakhstan business environment on the
operations and the financial posidon of the Company. The actual furure business environment may differ from management’s
Assessment,

2. Basis of preparation
The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The financtal statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis, except as mentoned in the Significant accounting
pohicies,

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Kazakhstant tenge ("KZT thousand”), except for the data used in
calculation of common share carrying amounts or unless otherwise indicated.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which provides for asser sales and
settlement of obligations in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s ability to sell its assets and its future operations
may be sipnificantly affected by the current and future economic environment in Kazakhsan,
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3. Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements,
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction berween
market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset ar transfer the liahility takes place either:

. In the prncipal market for the asset or liability; or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markert for the asser or habiliry.

The pancipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an assct or a hability 15
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that marker
participants act i their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of 3 non-financial asset takes mnto account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset tn its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in 1ts highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropnate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs. All
assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finandal statements are categonsed within the fair
value hierarchy, descrbed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

. Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for idennical assets ot liabiliries;

. Level 2: valuation models, in which significant assessment of fair value are based on inputs related to the lowest level
of hierarchy and are observable in the market either directly or indirectly,

. Level 3: valuanon models, in which significant assessment of fair value are based on inputs related to the lowest level
of hierarchy and are observable in the market either directly or indirectly.

For assets and habilittes thar are recogmsed w the financial statements on a recurnng basis, the Bank derermunes whether
transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonsation (based on the lowest level inpur thar is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) ar the end of each reporting penod.

Financial assets and liabilities
Initial recognition
Doate of recogmition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and habilities are recopnised on the trade date ie. the date that the
Company commits to purchase the asset or iabiliry. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assers and habilities thar require
delivery of assers and liabiliies within the pedod generally esrablished by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The classification of financial assets on initial recognition depends on the contractual terms and business model used for
managing mnstruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and
financial labilites recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added to this amount.

Mearsarenrent cateportes of financial assetr and Gabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for manaping the assets and the asset’s
contractual terms, measured ar either:

. amortised cost:
. at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT); or
. ar fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

The Company classifies and measures its denvanve and trading portfolio at FVTPL, The Company may designate financial
mnstruments at FVTPL, if so domng eliminates or sipnificantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilittes; other than loan commitments and financial puarantees, are measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL when
they are held for trading, are denvative instruments or the fair value designation is applied.

Amaunits due from banks loas te customers, fnvestorent seowrities measured ai anrortised cost

The Company only measures amounts due from banks, loans to customers and other financial investments at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:
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. a financial asset 15 held wathin a business model whose ohjective 15 to hald assets to colleet contractual cash flows;

. its contractual terms give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely parments of pnncipal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding (SPPI).
These terms are detatled below.
Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve
its business objectve.

The Company's business model is not assessed at the level of individual instruments but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors, such as:

L] how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model is evaluated and
how this information is reported to the key management;

. the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those asks are managed;

. how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

. the expected frequency, volume and tming of sales are also important aspects of the Company's business model
assessment,

The business model assessment is bazed on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios
into account. If cash flows after initial recogmtion are realised in a way that 15 different from the Company's ongnal
expectanons, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model,
but incorporates such information when assessing newly onginated or newly purchased financial assets gong forward.

“Waledy payments of principal and interest on the primcipal anmonnt outstanding” fest (YPPI fest)

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of the financial asset to idennify
whether they meer the SPPT test.

‘Prncipal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 1minal recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisaton of the premium /discount).

The most sipnificant elements of interest wathin a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the tme value of
money and credit risk. To make the SPPT assessment, the Company applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as
the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to dsks or volatlity in the contractual cash
flows thar arc unrelared to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
prncipal and interest on the amount outstanding, In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL,

As a second step of s classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of the financial asset to idennfy
whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on imtial recogmiton and may change
over the life of the financial asser (for example, 1f there are repayments of principal or amortsation of the premium / discount).

The most sipnificant elements of mrerest within a lending arrangement are rypically the consideranon for the ume value of
money and credit dsk. To make the SPP1 assessment, the Company apphes judgment and considers relevant factors such as
the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate 15 ser,

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce 4 more than de mimmis exposure to nsks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give dse to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of pnneipal and interest crterion if the prepayment amount
substantally represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the pnncipal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for eardy termination of the contract. In addition, a prepayment feature is treated as
consistent with this coterion if a financial asset 1s acquired or orginated at & preruum or discount to its contractual par
amount, the prepayment amount substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination), and the fair value of the prepayment feature
is insignificant on ininal recognition.
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Ciredit redated commfmments

Credit related commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is required
to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. These contracts are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

The Company oceasionally issues commitments to provide loans at below-market interest rates, Such commitments are
nitially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at the higher of an ECL allowance and the amount munally
recognised less cumulative income, where appropriate.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional

circumstances in which the Company changes the business model for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and amounts due from credit institutions that mature within not more than
ninety days of the date of onginaton and are free from contractual encumbrances.

Borrowings

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or 1o
sansfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash ot another financial asset for a fixed number of
own equity instruments. Such mstruments include amounts due to the sharcholder and amounts due to credir institutions,
debt secunties issued and payables to state and budget organisations. After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amornsed cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when
liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

Offserting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilites are offset and the net amount 15 reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable nght to ser off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the hability simultaneously. The night of ser-off must not be contngent on a future event and must be legally
enforceable in all of the following circumstances:

. The normal course of business;
. The event of default; and
. The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the entiry and all of the counterparties.

These conditons are not generally met in master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the statement of financial position.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Company seeks to restructure loans rather than ro take possession of collateral. This may involve
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan condinons,

The Company derecognises a financial asset, e.g, a loan to a customer, if the related contractual rerms are renegotiated 1o the
extent that it in fact becomes a new loan, and records the difference as gains or losses adsing from derecognition before
impairment loss 1s recogmsed, Upon inibal recogmition the loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
unless the new loan i1s deemed to be POCL When assessing, whether the loan to customer should be detecopnised, the
Company considers the following:

. change in currency of the loan;
. change in counterparty;
. if the modification is such thar the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion.

If the modification does not imply a substantial change in cash flows, such modification does not result in a derecognition,
Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the onginal EIR, the Company reconds a modification gain or loss that s
presented within other income or losses in the statement of profit or loss,

If the modification does not result in derecognition, the Company also reassesses the significant increase in credit sk or the
need to classify assers as credit-impaired,
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Modificaton of the terms of financial labilities

The Company derecognises a financial hability when its terme are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial habihity based on the modified terms 15 recognised at fair value, The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial habihty extingmshed and the new financial hability with modified
terms 15 recognised in profit or loss.

It a modification {or exchange) does not result in the derecognition of the financial hability the Company apphes accountng
policy consistent with the requirements for adjusting the gross carmoing amount of a financial asser when a modification does
not result in the derecognition of the financial asset, Le. the Company recognises any adjustment to the amortised cost of the
financial liability ansing from such a modification (or exchange) in profit or loss at the date of the modification (or exchange),

Changes in cash flows on existing financial habilities are not considered as modification, if they result from existing contractual
terms.

The Company assesses whether the modification is substantial based on quantitative and qualitative factors in the following
order: qualitative factors, quantitative factors, combined effect of qualitative and quantitative factors. The Company concludes
that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative factors:

change the currency of the financial bability;
change in collateral or other credit enhancement;
inclusion of conversion fearure;

change the subordination of the financial liability,

For the quantitative assessment the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the onginal effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the onginal financial habality. 1f
an exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining
term of the modified Lability,

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assers

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assers) is derecognised
from the statement of financial posiion where:

. The nghts to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired;

. The Company has transferred its nght to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to transfer
the received cash flows in full withour material delay to a third party under a “pass-through' arrangement; and

. The Company either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asser, or (h) has neither transferred
nor retained substantally all the osks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised ro the extenr of
the Compiny’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset 15 measured at the lower of the onginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Worrte-nff
Financial assers are written off in part or in full, only when the Company does not expect to recover their value, 1f the amount
to be wrtten off 1s lugher than the accumulated impairment allowance, the difference is at first recorded as the increase in the

allowance that is subsequently applied to the gross carrying amount. All the subsequent reversals are recognised as credit loss
expenses. The wrte-off relates to the derecognition event,

Financial liabilitics
A financial liability 15 derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Whete an existing financial liability s replaced by another from the same lender on substannally different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substannally modified, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a derecognition of the onginal
bability and the recognition of a new hability, and the difference in the respective carrving amounts 15 recognised in profit or
loss.
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Impairment

Non-dervarive financial assets
See also Notes 4 and 24.

The Company recognizes allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

. financial assets that are debt instruments;

. financial guarantee contracts issued,
Nao impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

The Company measures allowances for expected credit losses at an amount equal to lifenme ECL, except for the following,
for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

s - debt investment securities that are determined to have moderate credit risk at the reporting date; and

*  other inancial instruments on whach credit nsk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on & financial instrument that are possible wirthin the
12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognized are referred to as *Stage
1" inancial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments for which a lifettme ECL is tecognized are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments (if credit nsk on
Anancial instruments has increased significantly upon initial recognition but financial instrument 15 not credit-impaired) and
‘Stage 3" (if financial instrument is credit-impaired).

Mearurement of expected credit losses (ECL)

ECL are a default probability-weighted esnmarte of credit losses, They are measured as follows:

® jinancial asselr that are wet credit-tmpadred at the reparting dates as the present value of all cash shortfalls {1e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects 1o receive);

»  [fwancial assels that are credit-tmpaired af the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present
value of estmarted future cash flows;

o fiwancial grarantse contracts: the present value of expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the
Company expects 1o tecover.
Restraciured financial arsets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asser 15 replaced wath a new one due 1o
financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset should be derecognized and
ECL are measured as follows.

s If the expected restructuring wall not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash flows ansing
from the modified financial asset are included in caleulating the cash shortfalls from the exisnng asser,

* - if the expected restructunng will result in derecognition of the exssting asset, then the expected fair value of the new
asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its derccogmition. This amount is
mncluded in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of
derecognition 1o the reporting date using the onginal effective interest rate of the existing financial asser.

Credir-enphasred financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carred at amornzed cost and debr financial assets
carded at FVOCT are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credic-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detnmental
impact on the esumated future cash flows of the financial asset have ocourred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 1ssucr;
L] a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

®  the restructurng of a loan or advance by the Company on rerms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
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*  itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

®*  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of Anancial difficulties,

A loan that has been renegotiated due ro a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the nsk of not recenang contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment.

Taxation

The current corporate income tax charge is calculated in accordance with the tax legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Deferred corporate income tax assets and babilities are calculated in respect of all temporary differences using  the babality
method. Deferred income tases are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habilines
and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred corporate income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profir will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be uilised. Deferred corporate income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at tax rates that are expected to apply 1o the penod when the asset s realised ot the hability is settled, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company performs offseting of deferred tax assets and deferred rax liabilines and records them in the statement of
financial position on a net basis, when:

. The Company has a legally enforced right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and

. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities refer to corporate income tax charged by the same tax body from the
same taxpayer,

In additon, the Republic of Kazakhstan has various operating taxes applicable to the Company's operations. These taxes are
included in other operating expenses.
Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment are carded at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost is incurred if
the capitalisation criteda are met.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impatrment when events or changes in circumstances
indicare thar the carrving value may not be recoverable.

Costs relared to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses, unless they qualify
for capitalisation.

Deprecianon of an asset begins when 1t 15 available for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-hne basis over the following
estimated useful hves:

Depreciation rate
Buildings 1-5%
Machinery and equipment 4-200%
Vehicles 10-25%
Other 10-33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if approprate, at the end of each reporting penod.
Investment property

Investment property 15 intended to earn rental income from operating lease of real estare asscts for a long period or from
increment in value of property and land plots, which are not used by the Company as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties are measuged ininally at cost, including transaction costs. The canrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is mcurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
the costs of day-to-day servicng of an investment property. Investment property 1s subsequently measured ar cost less
accumulated depreciation. Investment property is amortised on a straight- line basis over the estmated useful life.

Investment property 1s derecognised in the statement of financial posinon when it is either disposed and no economic benefits
are expected from its disposal in future. Any gans or losses on the disposal of an investment property are recognised in profir
or loss in the year of derecognition.

Transfers to and from investment properties are carried out only when there is a change 0 use. For a transfer from investment

property to owner occupied property, the carrying amount does not change as the Company uses a cost accounting model
tor bath categories - investment property and property occupied by the owner.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer sofrware and licences,

Intangible assets acquired separately are imnally measured at cost. Following instial recognition, intangible assets are carned ar
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets wath finite lves are amortised
aver the useful economic lives of 1-10 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indicanion that the intangible
asset may be impaired.

Assets held for sale

The Company classifies a non-current asset as held for sale if its carrving amount will be recovered pancipally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the non-current asset must be available for immediare
sale i its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and 1ts sale must be

highly probable.

High probability of sale implies the Company management’s positive mntent to follow a plan to sell the non-current asset. In
this case, 1t is necessary to start the programme of active measures to search for a buyer and fulfil this plan. In addition, 2 non-
current asset must have been actively marketed for a sale ar a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value, In
addition, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classificanon of the non-currenr asset as held for sale.

The Company measures the assets classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amounr and fair value less costs to sell,
The Company recognises an impatrment loss for any ininal or subsequent write-down of the asset to far value less costs 1o
sell if events or changes in circumstance indicate that their carrying amount may be impaired.

Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral is pledged property seized from the Company’s borrowers to repay debt on 4 voluntary or compulsory
basis. The decision on taking pledged property on the Company's balance sheet shall be taken by the Credit Comminee and
then approved by the Management Board of the Company. Once all procedures have been performed, property is recognised
on the Company's balance sheet at its current esnmarted value. These assets are accounted for within the assets held for sale
i the statement of financial posinon.

Share capital

Charter capital

Contributions to share capital are recognised at histonical cost, less direct costs to 1ssue shares.
Reserve capiial

Reserve capital may be increased by transfernng funds from retained earnings based on a decision of the Company’s
Shareholder. Under the Company’s policy the reserve capital is formed to cover the general nsks including future losses and
other contingent risks and circumstances. Reserve capital 15 distriburable based on the Sharcholder’s decision.

Dividends
Drvidends are recognised as liability and deducted from equity at the reporting date only if they are approved befare or on the

reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date or proposed or declared after the
reporting date but before the financial statements are authorised for ssue,

Estimated liabilities
Estmated liabilinies are recognised: when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent habilities are not recognised in the statement of financial posinon but are disclosed unless the possibility of any
outflow in settlement is remote.

Loan commitments
Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide eredit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at fair value. Subsequentsy they are meamred
at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with [FRS 9 and the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance wath the principles of IFRS 15,

The Company has issued no loan commitments that are measured at FVTPL. For other loan commitments the Company
recognizes loss allowance. Financial habilines arising from loan commitments are included in other lahilities.

21



Agrarian Credir Corporation JSC Financial Statements for 2021

fin thossands of tengs)
Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recogmition eritera must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Tnterest and stwmelar income awd expenses

The Company calculates interest income on debt financial asscts measured at amornsed cost or at FVOCT by applying the
EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than eredit-impaired assets. The effective interest rate 1s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter penod, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial hability. The calculaton takes
into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment option) and includes any fees or
mncremental costs that are directly attabutable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective mterest rate, but not
future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial lability 1s adjusted if the Company revises its
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carmang amount 1s caleulated based on the onginal effective interest rate and
the change n carrying amount is recorded as interest income or expense.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Company ealculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate
to the net amortised cost of the fnancial asset. If the financial assets cure and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company
reverts to calculating mnterest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or onginated credit-impaired (POCT) financial assets, the Company calculates interest income by caleulating
the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adpsted EIR is the mnterest rate
that, at onginal recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortised cost of the
POCT assets.

Preseniateon

Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method presented in the statement of profit or loss includes interest
wncome on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

“Oither interest income™ item presented in the statement of profir or loss includes interest income on finance lease receivables,

Intetest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss includes interest expense on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost,

Government grants

Government grants are assistance by the Government, Government agencies and state-owned ennties in the form of transfers
of tesources to the Company in retumn for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities
of the Company. Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company wall comply
with the conditions attached to them and the grants wall be recerved. 1f there are conditions that may require repayment, the
grant 15 recognised in habilines.

The benefit of a government loan a1 a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant where the government
does not act as a sharcholder.  The benefit of the below-marker rate of interest 1s measured as the difference berween the
wnitial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.

Government grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as expenses on a
systematic basis in the same perniods i which the expenses are recognised.

Staff costs and related contributions

Wages, salanes, contnbutions to the state pension and social insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the vear in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company.
The Company has no legal or constructive obliganon to make pension or similar benefit payments beyond the pavments to
the statutory defined contnbution scheme,

Presentation of the separate statement of financial position in order of liquidity

The Company does not have a clearly idennfiable operating cycle and therefore does not present current and non-current
assets and habilities separately in the statement of financial position. Instead, analvsis of assers and liabilities by their expected
and contractual matunines are presented in Note 19,

Accounting for business combinations under common control.

A merger of entitics under common control is a business combination in which all of the combined ennries are ultimarely
controlled by the same party or parties, both before, and after the combination, and that control 1s not transitory. The effect
of combination of entities under common conteol is accounted for by the Holding using ‘equity interest combination’ method
provided that assets and liabilides of the combining companies are measured at their carrving amount at the combinaton
date, combination-related transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss, mutual balances are eliminarcd;
any difference between the purchase price paid/transferred and the value of acquired net assets (ar their carryving amount as
disclosed in the financial statements), and 15 recognised in the acquirer’s equity.
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Lease
Rughr-af-use asset

The Company recognises right-of-use assers at the commencement date of the lease (ie., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease habilites. The cost of dght-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Company is reasonably certan to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recogrsed righi-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of irs esnmared useful life and the lease
term, Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment testing,

Leare fabiliteer

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease labilines measured at the present value of lease
pavments to be made over the lease term, The lease payvments include fixed payments (including m-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, vanable lease payments that depend on an mndex or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company

exercising the option to terminate. The varable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the mterest rate implicit in the lease 1z not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease habilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrving amount of lease habilites is remeasured if there is a modificanon, a change in the lease term, a change i the in-
substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the undesdlying asset.

Khort-term feases and leases of bw-rale assefr

The Company applies the short-term lease recopnition exemption to its short-term leases (Le., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). The Company also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases wherein an underlying asset 15 considered of low value, Lease
payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a strught-line basis over the lease
rerm.

Significans jadgement in determining the lease term of coniracts with renenal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together wath any peniods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it1s reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease,
1f 1t 15 reasonably certain not 1o be exercised.

Finance lease — Campany as d fessar

The Company recognises lease payment receivables in the amount equal to net investments in lease from commencement of
the lease term. Finance income is calculated based on a pattern reflecting a constant perodic rate of retum on the carrying
amount of net investments, Initial direct costs are recorded within initial amount of lease payment receivables,

Leases which assume transfer of substantially all the asks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases (Jeasing),

Whether a lease 15 a finance lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the form.

Examples of siruations that individually or in combination would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease
are;

1} The lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

2) The lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that 18 expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value
at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be reasonably certain at the inception of the lease, that the option will be
exercised;

3) The lease term is for a major part of the economic bife of the asset even if tide is not ransferred;

4) At the inception of the lease the present value of the mintmum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of the
fair value of the underying asset, or

3) The undetlying asset is of such a spectalised narure that only the lessee can use them without major modifications being
made.

IFRS 16 also identifies charactensncs that, mdividually or in combination, can lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease:

1) if the lessee 15 entitled to cancel the leaze early, the lessor's losses associated with the cancellanon are bome by the lessee;
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2} gains or losses from fluctuations in the fair value of the residual fall to the lessee (for example, by means of a rebate of
lease payments equal to the majonty of the proceeds from the sale at the end of the lease term); and

3 the lessee has the ability to continue to lease for a secondary perod at a rent that 15 substantally lower than market
rent,
[nitial measirenicnt

Upon lease commencement, the Company shall recognise assets held under a finance lease as a recewable atan amount equal
to the net investment in the lease.

Initial recognition 1s made on the date of sigming of the act of transfer, acceptance of the leasing item with the lessee. The net
investment in the lease is the gross investment in the lease discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Ininal direct costs associated with the acquisinon of the leasing item are included in the inital measurement of financial lease
recervables,

Lease payments are made by lessees on a regular basis in accordance wath finance leases. Lease payments are allocated n
accordance with the terms of concluded finance leases,

The recognition of finance income should be based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. The accrual of interest begins at commencement of the lease term,
unless otherwise is stipulated by the terms of the finance lease.

The commencement date of a lease is the date on which the lessor makes an asset available for use by a lessee. This is the

date of inittal recognition of the lease (1Le. recognition by the lessee of the relevant assets, habilines, income or expenses ansing
from the lease),

Drerecagnition

Wntng off the principal, fees and other receivables on finance lease at the expense of the established provisions is made in
the following cases:

a) declanng the debtor bankrupt and /or excluding the debtor from the national registers of identification numbers;

b) the Company has received an act of the bailiff to terminate the enforcement proceedings and rerum the wrir of
execution to the clumant due o the debtor's lack of property that can be foreclozed. At the same tme, deln
cancellaton is made only if the bankruptey proceedings cannot be applied due to legal restncnons.

Fees may be charged under finance leases. If the fee 15 an integral part of the effectve interest rare for a finance lease such
fee is recognised as a discount to the pancipal amount of the finance lease and is credited to income using the effective interest
method. The fee is payable within the terms supulated by the contract,

The Company records a modification of finance lease as a lease if the following two conditions are met:
1) assets increase under the lease agreement; and

Z) consideration for the lease 15 increased by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone selling price to ncrease
the scope, and by approprate adjustments 1o that stand-alone selling prce to reflect the circumsiances of the particular
contract,

If the modification to a finance lease 15 not recorded as a lease, the Company accounts for the modification under [FRS 9,

In the event of a finance lease in which the Company acts as a lessee, the Company, for recognition and measurement of
transacoons, will be guided by the relevant provisions of IFRS 16 Leaser.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Kazakhstani tenge, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are imtially recognised in the functional curreney of the Company at exchange rate at the
date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilines denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of foreign currency
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as foreign exchange net gain/loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as
at the dates of fair value measurement.

The difference between the contracrual exchange rate of a transaction in a foreign currency and the official (Kazakhstan Stock
Exchange (KASE) exchange rate as at the date of the transaction are included in gains less losses from translation difference.
Below are the exchange rates used by the Company in preparation of these financial statements:
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31 December 31 December
2021 2020
KZT/USD 431.80 420.M
KZT/ELUR 489.10 516.79
KZT/RUB 5,76 5.62
Segment reporting

The Company's business and geographical segments were not presented separately in these fnancial statements as
management believes that the main operating segment of lending and finance leasing 15 agocultural orgamsations in the
Republic of Kazakhstan, for which the nsks and level of return are considered similar throughout the country. Making
decizions on the allocation of the Company’s resources and assessment of the Company's performance by the management
miking operating decisions are based on the IFRS financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards are effective for annual penods beginning after [ January 2022 and earlier application is permitted.
However, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in prepanng these financial stacements,

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements,

*  Onerous contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to LAS 37);

»  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12);
s COVID-19-Relared Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 2021 — Amendment to IFRS 16;

e Annual Improvements to 1IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - various standards.

s Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to TAS 16).

*  Reference to Conceptual Framework {Amendments to 1FRS 3).

*  Classification of Liabilitics as Current or Non-current (Amendments to LAS 1)

s Disclosure of Accountng Policies (Amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

*  Defintion of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to TAS 8),

A number of new interpretation are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2021. Applicanon of these
interpretations did not have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements,

4, Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has used its judgments and made estimates in
determining the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The most significant use of judgments and estimates are as
follows:

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial aszers and financial habalines recorded 10 the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a varety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical
models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Further details are provided in Note 26.

Eagpected redit fosses on finaneial asvets

The measurement of impatrment losses under IFRS 9 across all categonies of financial assets requires udgement, in partncular,
the estimation of the ECL. and uming of furure cash flows and collateral values when assessing a significant increase in credit
tisk. These estumates are doven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances, The
Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with & number of undetlying assumptions regarding the choice
of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounnng judgements and
esumates include:

- The Company’s cotenia for assessing if there has been a signaficant increase in credit nsk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measured on a hfetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

. Grouping of financial assets, when their ECLs are assessed on a group hasts;
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. Development of the ECL calculation models, including various formulas and choice of input data;

. Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenatios and, economic mputs, such as effect on probabilinies
of default (PIY), exposures at default (FAD) and losses given default (LGD);

. Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenanios and their probability weightings, to denve the economic inputs
into the ECL aszessment models.

Further details are provided in Note 26.
Collateral assersment

The Company’s monitors the collaterals on 4 regular basis, using its judgments based on experience or independent estimates
to adjust the value of collateral to reflect current market conditions. Further details are provided in Note 26,

Tazcarton

The Republic of Kazakhstan currently has a single Tax Code that regulates main taxation matters. The existing taxes include
value added tax, corporate income tax, social and other taxes, Implementing regulations are often unclear or non-existent and
msignificant amount of precedents has been established, Often, differing opinions regarding legal interpretation exist both
among and within government ministries and organisations; thus creating uncertainties and areas of conflicts. Tax declarations,
together with other legal compliance areas (as examples, customs and currency control matters) are subject to review and
investigation by a number of authonties, which are enabled by law to impose severe fincs, penaltics and interest charges. These
Eacts create tax asks in Kazakhstan substantally more significant than typically found in countres with more developed tax
systems,

Management believes that the Company is in compliance with the tax laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan regulating its
operations. However, the risk remains thar relevant authorities could take differing positions with regard to interpretive tax
1s5ues.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.

5.  Reclassification and revision of comparative figures
{rovernment grants

The Company applied the requirements of [AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance and restated the comparative figures as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,

The above-mentioned changes resulted in increase of habilities and decrease of equity of the Company as at 31 December
2020 and 2019,

Highly liguid financial assets with ariginal maturities of less than three months

The Company classificd the highly liquid investment securities with onginal matunty of less than three months 1o cash and
cash equivalents, which resulted in more relevant and reliable presentation of data. Thus classification affected comparative
informarion, for the purpose of presentation of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2021,

This reclassification affected a change in the classificanon of items in the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020,

Additianal paid-in capital
The Company deaided to classify discount on the inital recognition of loans from the Shareholder at the below-market interest

tates that was previously included in addinonal paid-in capital within the rerained earmings/accumulated losses. This
reclassification affected the comparatives to present the financial statements for the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021,

Provision for conditional distribution

The Company decided to classify contngent distmbunon reserve accumulated due to issuance of loans ar below marker interest
rates to the retaned earnings/ accumulated losses. This classificanon affected comparative mformation, for the purpose of
presentation of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2021,

The effect of changes due to restatement and reclassifications on the corresponding figures can be summarnsed as follows:
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As
As previously restated /reclas
reported Adjustments  Reclassification sified
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December
2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 48,744,242 - 26,898 863 75,643,105
Investment securities 27,569,113 - (26,898 B63) 670,250
Finance lease receivables 740,711 - {740,711) -
Deferred corporate income tax assers - 1,831,737 (1.468.832) 362 5
Orher azaers 1,546,266 - 740711 2286977
Liabilites
Giovernment grants - 9,158,681 3312883 12,471,564
eferred corporate income tax abilities 1,468,832 - (1.468.832) -
Ohther liabilities 5,050,086 - (3.312.883) 1,757,203
Equity
Additional paid-in capital 70,446,355 (70,446,355) .
Prowidgion for condiional distnbution (84,687 953) . 84,687,953 -
Remined earmings/ (aceumulated loss) 8,156,906 63,119,411 (84,687,053} (13,411,636
Statement of profit or loss for the twelve months
ended 31 December
2020
Interest income calculated using effective interest
method
Cash and cazh equivalents 3,790,549 - 1877082 5,667,631
[nvestment securibes 1,942,584 - (1.877.082) 65,502
Loans to banks (N owe §) 4074 947 2,454,642 - 6.52% 589
Loans to customers (Note @) 53,691,035 Y678 R27 - 57,369 862
Other interest income
Finance lease receivables B7422 - (87422) -
Orther income 184,300 - (184,300 -
{¥ther expenses {340,034 {2,165.751) 2n. 12z (2434,065)
Comporate mcome tax expense {4,361 040 - 264,040 4,097 000
Interest expense
Due to the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan
Note 18) (5.678) (5.287,922) s (5,293 600)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the twelve
months ended 31 December
2021
Total comprehensive ncome for the penod 19,660,049 (1,056,164) = 18,603,885
Income feom mnital recogration of loans receved from !
the Shareholder at fair value, net of wax 11,821,501 - (65,386,374} 5,415,127
Provision for conditional dhstnbution for year, net of tax {17 220,666 A 17,220, 666 =
Daatmbution to the Shareholder, net of ox o = (1,680571) (1.680,5713

Statement of Cash Flows for the twelve months

ended 31 December

2020

Cash flows from operating activities before changes

in operating asscis and liahilitics

Cash flows from operating activitics

Interest recerved 35,106,920 - 85,384 35,192,313
INie fimoreaase){ dlecrese v aferaiing aiels

(overnment grants - - 3.598,786 3,598,786
Orther lisbihnes 2334558 - {3,598,786) (1,264, 228}
Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from repayment of investment sceurifics 257,220 023 - (257,229.023) -
Acquisition of mvestment secuntics (284,045 533) - 284,043,533 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod 48,744,242 - 26,808 863 75,643,105
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31

December 2019

Assets

Dreferred corporate mcome tax assets = 3,856,126 (1,486,049} 2,370,077
Finance lease recesvables 2,287,406 - (2,287 406) -
Other assets 1,663,281 2,287 406 3,950,687
Liabilities

Government grants N 19 280,627 1,971,296 21,251,923
Deferred corporate income tax liabilities 1,486,049 = (1,486,049) =
Oither liabilities 4,231,587 = (1.971,296) 2,260,291
Equity

Additional paid-in capital 58,624,854 (58,624,854) : .
Provision for conditional distribution (67.467,287) - 6T 467 287 -
Retained earnings/ (accumulated loss) 4,530,893 43,200,353 (67 467 287) (19,736,041)

6., Business combination

To implement the Address of the Head of State to the People of Kazakhstan, the Mimstrr of Agrculture and the Minstry of
Industry and Infrastructural Development of the Republic of Kazakhstan approved a National Plan Road Map (the “Road
Map™). Pursuant to Section 27 of the Road Map, by the end of 2021, Fund for Financial Support of Agriculture JSC (the
“Fund™) was reorganised through takeover by the Company, with subsequent dissolution of the Fund.

By decision of the Management Board of the Sole Shareholder No, 66/21 dated 13 December 2021, the Company was
reorganised through the retrospective takeover of the Fund on 1 December 2021. The FFSA property, nghts and obhgations
were transferred to the Company as part of the reorganisation from the date of approval of the act of transfer, taking into
account the requirements of the legislanon of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

As 4 result of the reorganisation, the Company has become a legal successor of FFSA for all its obligatons and property nghrs
in tespect of all creditors and debtors of FFSA, including those for obligations and property nghts appealed by the partics
(FF3A and/or third partes).

The Company's share capital increased by KZT 80,371,244 thousand after the rakeover of FFSA. On 1 December 2021, after
the placement of shares, FFSA transferred all assets and liabilities, and the net assets on the transfer amounted o
KZT 80,683,116 thousand. As a result, the Company recognised a positive difference of K2 311,872 thousand within within
the retained eammgs in equity. The following table summarses the recognised amounts of assets acquired and labilities
assumed at the takeover date:

ar I December
2021
Assels
Cash 46,644,824
Tnvestment securitics 1,092,602
Loans to customers 164,316,308
Lease recervables 9,620,253
Property held for finance lease 444,762
Advances paid 43,058
Property, plant and equipment 1,103,880
Intangble assets 412,034
Value added tax receivable 1,115,274
Other assers 401,359
Total assets 225,194,354
Liahilities
Loans from local execunve bodies 112,360,228
Loans from the United Nanons 27,533
Liabilities on rural mortgage 1,984, 254
Dbt secunnes 1ssued 7,732,456
Current corporate income tax habilities 332597
Deferred corporate income tax liabilines 2,149,413
Deferred value added tax habahty 1,292,335
Govemnment grants 17,333,744
Oither lialalities 1,298,678
Total liabilities 144,511,238
Total net assets 80,683,116
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7. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

JI December 2020

31 December 2021 (restared)

Cash on current bank accounts 39,149,641 43,081,608
MNBRE notes 20,487 425 26,809 294
Orvernight deposits with other banks 14,218,696 5,663,254
Cash on hand 15 15
102,855,777 75,644,771

Allewance for expected credit losses {2,604} (1,666)
Cash and cash equivalents 102,853,173 75,643,105

As ar 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents are not past due and cateponsed into Stage 1 (31 December 202{: cash
and cash equivalents are not past due and categonsed into Stage 1),

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances may be summarised
based on Standird and Poor’s or other agencies converted into Standard & Poor's scale as follows:

31 December 2021
Overnight
Current deposits with
ACCOUTES MNBRK notes other banks Toral
Mot overdue
- NBRK notes (not rated) = 29 487 425 - 29 487,425
- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 54129045 - - 54,129,945
- rated from BB- to BB+ 156,343 - 14,202 786 14,359,129
- pated from B- to B+ 111,323 = = 111,323
- not rared 4,752,030 - 15,910 4,767,940
Total cash and cash equivalents, net of cash
before deduction of impairment allowance 59,149,641 29 487,425 14,218,696 102,855,762
Allowance for expected credir losses {835) (1,089) (6A0) (2,604
Total cash and cash equivalents, net of cash 59,148,806 29,486,336 14,218,016 102,853,158
31 December 2020 (restated)
Overnigin
Current deposits with
ACCOUTTES NBRK notes other banks Total
Mot overdue
- NBRK notes {not rated) - 26,800 894 - 26,899,894
- rated from BBB- 1o BEB+ 29477509 = = 29,477,509
- rated from BB- o BB+ 13,599,003 s - 13,599,093
- rated from B- to B4 5, (K0 - 5,006
- not rated - - 5,663,254 5,663,254
Total cash and cash equivalents, net of cash
before deduction of impairment allowance 43,081,608 26,899,894 5,663,254 75,644,756
Allowance for expected credir losses (611} (1,031) (24) (1,666
Total cash and cash equivalents, net of cash 43,080,997 26,898,863 5,063,230 75,643,090

As ar 31 December 2021 the balance of not rated cash and cash equivalents includes the balances with Cinbank Kazakhstan
J5C {31 December 2020: Citibank Kazakhstan |5C).

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a bank account and NBRK notes wath aggregated cash and cash equivalent
balances above 10.00% of equity: Eurasian Development Bank for the amount of KZT 33,570,476 thousand and NBRK
notes for KZT 29,487,425 thousand (31 December 2020: Eurasian Development Bank for the amount of KZT 29,477 500
thousand and NBRK notes for KZ27T 26,899,894 thousand).

8. Loans to banks
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Loans to second-tier banks 12,618,972 14,968,114
Term deposits with matunty less than 90 days 108,779 -
12,727,751 14,968,114
Allowance for expected credit losses (19,239 (26,436}
Due from banks 12,708,512 14,941,678

As at 31 December 2021, loans to second-tier banks are not overdue and are cateporised into Stage 1 (31 December 2020:
loans to second-tier banks are not overdue and categonsed into Stage 1),
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The table below provides analysis of movements in the ECL allowance for the vear ended 31 December 2021:
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Toral
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2021 26,436 - - 26,436
New assets onginated or purchased 78,221 - - 78,221
Assets repaid (B3,418) - - (85,418)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 _ . _ _
Movemenis in ECLs for the year as a result of
transfer from Stage to Stage and changes in inputs: - = - i
At 31 December 2021 19,239 - - 19,239
The table below provides analysis of movements in the ECL allowance for the year ended 31 December 2020:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2020 142,178 - - 142,178
New assets originated or purchased (146,934) - - (146,934)
Assets repad 75474 - - 75474
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 = T = =
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - -
Movements in ECLs for the year as a result of
transfer from Srage to Stage and changes in inputs: {44,282) - - (44,282)
At 31 December 2020 26,436 - - 26,436
The following table provides nformation about credit quality of loans to banks:
3 December
F1 December 2021 2020
Not overdue
- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 1,298,136 =
- rated from BB- o BB+ 11,328,459 14,643,934
- rated from B- 1o B+ 101,156 324,180
12,727,751 14,968,114
Allowance for expected credit losses (19,239} (26,436)
Loans to banks 12,708,512 14,941,678

During twelve months ended 31 December 2021, as part of “Ken-1Jala” annual government programme for support of the
spring field works, the Company provided loans to Halyk Savings Bank [SC for the total amount of KZ'T 31,840,998 thousand
at the below-market interest rate of 1.50% pa. and matanty on 1 December 2021, The Company recogmised discount of
KZT 1,954,546 thousand as loss on initial recopmition of loans at below-market interest rates and interest income on
amortisation of discount of KZT 1,954,546 thousand in the statement of profit or loss within other expenses and interest
income on loans to banks, respectively. The Company applied esnmated market interest rates of 10.19% — 11.00% pa. w
measure the fair value of the above-mentioned loans on mninal recognition by discounting their future contractual cash flows.

During twelve months ended 31 December 2020 the Company issued the following loans:

- as part of “Ken-Dala” annual govemment programme for support of the sprng ficld works, the Company provided loans
to Halyk Savings Bank ]SC for the total amount of KZT 19,168,831 thousand, to Bank CenterCredit |SC - for the total amount
of KZT 4,300,000 thousand, to Nurbank JSC - for the total amount of KZT 3,039,032 thousand, to ATFBank |SC (SB First
Heartland Jysan Bank J5C) - for the total amount of KZT 3,047,650 thousand, the loans bear the below-market interest rate
of 1.50 per annum and mature on 1 December 2020, The Company recognised discount of KZT 2,454,642 thousand as loss
on initial recognition of loans at below-market interest rates and interest income on amornsation of discount of KZT 2 454,642
thousand in the statement of profit or loss within other expenses and interest income on loans to banks, respectvely. The
Company applied estimated market interest rates of 11.4% p.a. to measure the fair value of the above-mentioned loans on
mitial recognition by discounting their future contractual cash flows.

- under “Agrobusiness” universal lending program  aimed at financing livestock farming, crop farming, processing for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, including modermisation/reconstruction of the facilities, construction and
assembly wark, and replenishment of working capital, the Company provided loans to 8B Bank VB (Kazakhstan) for the
total amount of KZT 1,370,000 thousand, 8B Sherbank |SC - for the total amount of KZ7T 473,805 thousand ar the below-
market interest rate of 2.80% per annum and matunng on 11 September 2026, The Company recognised discount of
KZT 435,180 thousand as loss on initial recopninon of loans at below-market interest rates and interest income on
amottisation of discount of KZT 34,673 thousand in the statement of profit or loss within other expenses and interest income
on loans to banks, respectively. The Company applied esumated market interest rates of 11.1% ~ 13.9% p.a. to measure the
Ear value of the above-mentioned loans on ininal recogniton by discounting their future conrractual cash flows,

As at 31 December 2021 the Company had no balances with banks with total balance exceeding 10% of equity.
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9. Loans to customers

Loans to customer are represented by loans 1o the horrowers operanng n the agrcultural sector and include the following
positions:

I December 2021 31 December 2020

Loans to legal entines 488 089 223 439,584,962
Larvans to mdviduals 265,967,040 75,017,020

754,056,263 514,601,982
Allowance for cxpected credir losses (89 040,036) (65,375.029)
Loans to customers 665,016,227 449,226,953

Impairment allowance for loans to customers

The table below provides analysis of movements in the gross book value and the ECL allowance for loans to legal ennnes and
individuals for the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021:

Loans o

fegal entities Seage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 PoCT Toral
Gross carrying amount at 1 January 2021 209,432,900 6,757,110 220,768,369 2,626,583 439,584,962
Recopnised as a resule of menger 3406,345 123,055 1,496,542 - 5,026,542
New assets onginated or purchased 91,793,211 2, 90K 66,570,817 - 158,630,928

Assets repaid, including changes due o
partial repayment or increase in gross

carrying amount (65,934,550 (783,663) (61,756,999 (724945 (129,200,157)
Transters 1o Stage | 7,665,959 (2,793.593) (4,872.366) - -
Transters to Stage 2 (2,047 490, 2494072 (447 482) - -
Transters to Stage 3 (68,541,987) (2,751,570) 1,253,557 - -

Changes provided for by agreement of cash
flows from medification that does not result

in derecogmition 92975 20,401 2207 482 1,969 2,322,827
Changes in inrerest accrued 2443 968 61,192 2374075 257088 12,136,323
Amounts wotten off - - (412,202 - (412,202)
At 31 December 2021 178,311,931 3,394,804 304,221,793 2,160,695 488,089,223
Loans o]
egal entities Srage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Toral
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2021 2,835,939 4,825 55,853,932 1,075,604 59,770,300
Recognised as a result of merper 2,251 1,209 1,333,950 - 1,337,410
Mew assces originated or purchased 618,997 1,129 5,037,297 = 5,657,423
Assets repaid (125,381) - (1,178,174} . (1,303,555)
Transfer to Stage 1 505,084 {4,825) ({500,259} - -
(B0.494) 80,404 ~ . -
Transter to Stage 3 (765972 = 765,972 - =

Movements in FECLs for the vear as a result

of transfer from stage to stage and changes

in inputs (664,256) 106,024 (4432,104) (428,174} (5,418,510)
Changes provided for by agreement of cash

fewws from modification that dees not eesult

in derecognition 18,676 18,676
Unwinding of discount = - 6,071 8% - 6,071,803
Recovery = = 5,762 - 5,762
Amounts written off = = (412,202) - (412,202)
At 31 December 2021 2,326,168 188,856 62,564,653 647,430 65,727,107
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The table below provades analysis of movements in the gross carrving amount and the ECL allowsance for loans to ndividuals
for the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021:

Loans ro

individuals Stage 1 Stage 2 Srage 3 POCT Total

Gross carrying amount at 1 January

2021 57,234,051 2,081,669 14,915,971 785,329 75,017,020

Recognised as a resulr of merger 156,113,011 3,887,143 16,928 427 - 176,928,581

MNew assets onginated or purchased 20 685,438 9 Bk 3,715,968 - 33,411,206

Assets repaid, including chanpes due to

partial repayment of INCrease in gross

CAFTYING AMount (19,232.919) {638,629) (3,299,502 (27.217) (23,198,357)

Transfers to Stage 1 3387476 {8B2,731) (2,504,745) - -

Transfers to Stage 2 (587 288) 857,750 (270.462) =

Transfers to Stage 3 (3.019.615) {431,703 3,451,318 - -

Changes provided for by agreement of

cash flows from modification that does

not result in derecogmnon (799 - 125,343 = 124,544

Changes in interest acerued 2,832 405 (46,360) BB8, 163 66,326 3,740,534

Amounts watten off - £ (76,488) r (56,488)

At 31 December 2021 226,411,760 4,836,939 33,893,903 524,438 265,967,040

Loans to

individuals Strage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Toral

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2021 433,995 222 487 4,862,371 85,876 5,604,729

Recognised as a result of merger 321164 18,205 15,961,336 - 16,301,405

Mew assets onginated or purchased 328,700 - 587,951 - 914,651

Aszsets repaid (31,630) (61,037) {B5,8068) - {178,535)

Transfer to Stage 1 216,323 (97,145} (119,178) - -
{2,387) 17,048 (14,661) = -

Transfer to Stage 3 (29,380) {64,305) 03,685 s e

Movements in ECLs for the year as a

result of rransfer from Stage ro Stage and

changes in inputs (323,622 (5,706) 370,587 454,098 495,357

Changes provided for by agreement of

cash flows from modification thar does

not result in derecognition - — 38,505 - 38,595

Unwinding of discount - . 186,624 - 186,624

Recovery - - 4,477 - 4,477

Amounts wrtten off - (536,37TH - {(56,374)

At 31 December 2021 913,163 30,247 21,829, 545 539,974 23,312,929

Dunng twelve months ended 31 December 2021, as part of “Ken-Dala” annual government programme for lending of the
agro-industrial complex entities to support the spring field works, the Company provided loans for the total amount of
KZT 38,159,002 thousand at the below-market interest rate of 2.00% p.a. and marunty before Apnl 2022, The Company
recogmsed discount of KZT 4,027 401 thousand on imnal recogninon and unwanding of discount of KZT 3,708,197 thousand
in the statement of profit or loss within other expenses and nterest income on loans to customers, respectively, The loss of
KZT 4,027 401 thousand on initial recognition of loans at below-market interest rates was partially compensated through
recept of a government grant of KZT 3,757 430 thousand (Note 18). The Company applied estimated market interest rates
of 13.70% — 14.40% p.a. to measure the fair value of the above-mentioned loans on iinial recogninon by discountng their
future contracmual cash fows,

Diuring twelve months ended 31 December 2021, as part of “Ken-Dala” annual government programme for lending of the
agro-industrial complex entities to support the spring field works, the Company provided loans for the total amount of
KZT 40,444,487 thousand ar the below-marker interest rate of 1.5% p.a. and maturity before November 2021. The Company
recognised discount of KZT 3,678,827 thousand on initial recognition and unwinding of discount of KZT 3,678,827 thousand
in the statement of profit or loss within other expenses and interest income on loans to customers, respectively. The loss of
KZT 3,678,827 thousand on imitial recognition of loans at below-market interest rates was parnally compensated through
receipt of a government grant of KZT 2,833,278 thousand (Note 18), The Company applicd estmated market interest rares
of 9.60% —11,10% pa. to measure the fair value of the above-mentioned loans on nitial recogmition by discounting their
tuture contracrual cash flows,
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Danng the twelve months ended 31 December 2021 the Company continued to issuc and service loans thar were 1ssued as
part of the state programme for agro-industrial development; new loans of KZT 3,673,462 thousand were issued (2020 year;
KZT 30,676,261 thousand). The Company used estmated market interest rates of 11.60% — 16.70% p.a. (2020 vear: from
14.60% to 17.70% p.a.) to measure the fair value of the abovementioned loans on initial recognition by discounting their
future contractual cash flows. The loss on minal recognition of these loans issued at below market interest rate in the amount
of KZT 1,055,269 thousand (2020 vear: KZT 6,739,991 thousand) was recognised within other expenses. Moreover, dunng
the twelve months ended 31 December 2021 the Company incurred expected credit losses for the total amount of KZT
2,622,721 thousand (2020 year: KZT 7,958,149 thousand) on new and previously 1ssued loans dunng 2018-2020 as part of the
abovementioned programme.

Dhuring the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021 the Company continues issuing and servicing the loans provided under
the State Programme for the Development of Productive Employment and Mass Entreprencurship for 2017-2021 (*Isker™);
new loans were issued for the amount of KZT 18,967,321 thousand 2020k KZT 12,673,036 thousand). The Company used
estimated market interest rates of 11.60%% to 16.70M% p.a, (2020: 9.607% - 14.60% p.a.) to measure the fair value of the above-
mentioned loans on initial recognition by discounnng their future contractual cash flows. The loss of KT 6,674 848 thousand
on ininal recognition of these loans issued at below marker interest rate (2020: KT 3,894,053 thousand) was recognized
within other expenses and fully compensated at the expense of a government grant (Note 18).

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, the funds received as part of the bond issue in the total amount of
KZT 5,000,000 thousand under the program “Employment Roadmap 2020-2021" (Note 14) were allocated in full to the agro-
industnal complex ennties. The Company used esnmared marker interest rates of 16.30% — 16.7(F% p.a. to measure the fair
value of the abovementioned loans on inital recognition by discounting their future contracrual cash flows. The loss of
K21 900,656 thousand on initial recognition of these loans issued ar below market interest tate was recognised within other

CXPETIRES,

In the normal course of business, the Company provides loans at below market rates to borrowers operating in the agncoliural
industry. Loss of KZ2T 25,782,983 thousand on initial recogmtion of loans at below marker interesr rates (Note 22) was
recognised within other expenses for the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021 (rwelve months ended 31 December 2020:
KZT 10,891,789 thousand). The Company used estimated market interest rates of 11.60% - 16.70%% pa. (twelve months
ended 31 December 2020 9.60% - 14.60%) to measure the fair value of the loans on initial recognition by discounting their
furure contractual cash fows.

The table below provides analysis of movements in GCA and ECL allowance for loans to legal entities durning the twelve
months ended 31 December 2020:

Loans ro

fegal entities Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Toral
Gross carrying amount at 1 January

2020 187,870,047 8,421,103 166,459,436 2,779,942 365,530,528
Mew assets originated or purchased 145,350 982 2345572 50.007,313 = 206,703,867
Assers repaid (88,973,491) (2,111,641) (49,310,095) (416,634) (140,811,861}
Transfers to Stage 1 30,569,139 (9.053,613) (21,515,526) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (22.479,036) 24 107,858 (1,628,827 = -
Transfers to Stage 3 (45,060,420} (16,973,288) 62,039,708 = -
Changes provided for by agreement of

cash flows from modification thar does

not tesult in derecopnition 11470 - (438,063) - (426,593)
{:h_angcs in interest accrued 2,150,209 21,119 7494 084 263,275 9,928,687
Amounts written off - - (1,339,666 - (1,339,666)
At 31 December 2020 209,432,900 6,757,110 220,768,369 2,626,583 439,584,962
Legal entities Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Taral
ECL allowance as at 1 Janoary 2020 2,961,980 36,716 48,443,214 746,145 52,188,055
New assets onginated or purchased 1,428,519 - 5,585,755 — 7014274
Assers repaid (105,214) (3,938) (4.046,845) - (4,1553,997)
Transfers to Stage 1 2,333,858 (20,7500 (2,313,108) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (131,421) 135,783 {4,362) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (1,019,681) (GBT,669) 1,707,350 - =
Movements in ECL for the period (2,633 606) 544 6R3 1,666,390 329459 (93,074
Changes provided for by agreement of

cash flows from modification thar does

not result in derecogminon 1,504 - {37,430) = {55,926)
Unwanding of discount - - 6,212,634 - 6,212,634
Amounts watten off - {1,339,6606) - {1,339,666)
31 December 2020 2,835,939 4,825 55,853,932 1,075,604 59,770,300
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The table below provides analysis of movements in GCA and ECL allowance for loans to legal entities during the twelve

maonths ended 31 December 2020:

Loans to

individuals Seage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3 POCI Toral

Gross carrying amount at 1 January

2020 39,720,392 952,039 10,146,124 810,165 51,628,720

New assets anginated or purchased 33578972 = 204,261 - 33,783,233

Assets repad (2.318,828) (204.172) (3,133,131) (108,115) (12,854,246)
Transfers ro Stage 1 6,635,265 (2414517 {4,220,748) = -

Transfers ro Stage 2 (9,392.127) 9,720,589 {328,402) - -

Transfers ro Stage 3 (5,836,763) (6,013,064 11,851,827 - -
Changes provided for by agreement of

cish flows from modification that does

not result in derecognition {14,943) - {119,061) 19,423 {114,581
Changes in interest accrued 1,862,083 132,794 620,392 63,850 2,679,125

Amounts written off - - {105,231) —~ (105,231)
At 31 December 2020 57,234,051 2,081,669 14,915,971 785,329 75,017,020

Individuals Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Total

ECL allowance at 1 January 2020 464,645 23,237 2,446,857 252,767 3,187,506

New assets orginated or purchased 479,970 - 15,722 495,692

Assets repaid (13.307) (B,746) (205,533) (227,586)
Transfer to Stage 1 443,247 (47,1448) (396,101} - -

Transfers 1o Stage 2 (175.555) 291,104 (115,349 - -

Transfer to Stage 3 {120,981) (423,770 544,751 =

Movements in ECL for the period (642,912) 387,808 2285416 (168,336) 1,861,976

Changes provided for by agreement of

cash Hows from modificaton that does

not result in derecognition (1,112 - {B.538) 1,445 (8,525)
Unwinding of discount - - 400,897 - 400,897

Amounts written off - - (105,231) - (105,231)
31 December 2020 433,995 222 487 4,862,371 85,876 5,604,729

The following rable provides information on the credit quality of the loans to customers as at 31 December 2021 and

31 December 2020:

At 31 December 2021
Stage 2 Srage 3
Liferime ECL  Lifetime ECL
OFF AESELE NOT 0N RESETS NOT
Stage 1 credir- credit-
Legal entities 12-month ECL impaired fmpaired PoCT Taoral
Mot overdue 176,174,503 2,647,339 244263372 2,160,695 425,245 909
overdue up o 30 days 2,137 428 133,524 14,407 326 - 16,678,278
- overdue more than 31 days and
lese than 60 days 2 613,941 5,198,534 - 5812475
- overdue more than 61 days and
less than 90 days - 4,450 535 - 4,459 535
overdue more than 91 days and
less than 360 days - - 10,589,740 10,589,740
- overdue more than 1 vear - - 25.303,286 - 25,303,286
178,311,931 3,394,504 304,221,793 2,160,695 488,089,223
Allowance for expected credir losses {2,326,168) {188,856) (62,564,653) (647 430) (65,727,107
175,985,763 3,205,948 241,657,140 1,513,265 422,362,116
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At 31 December 2021
Stage 2 Stage 3
Liferime ECIL.  Liferime ECL
on ASSCLS NOF O ASSELs not
Srage | credit- credit-
Individuals 12-monch ECL impaired impaired Total
Not overdue 212,699,187 - 10,932,511 - 223,631,698
overdue up 1o 30 days 13,712,575 274,068 947 384 315,178 15,249,203
- overdue more than 31 days and
less than 60 days - 4,562,871 1,209,724 500,260 6,281,855
- overdue more than 61 days and
less than 90 days - = 2408222 2 2408222
- overdue more than 91 days and
less than 360 days - - 6,080,262 - 680,262
overdue more than 1 year = = 12,315,800 - 12,315,800
226,411,760 4,836,939 33,893,903 824,438 265,967,040
Allowance for r.xpr_'cn:d credit losses (3,163} (30,247} (21,829.545) (339.974) (23,312,929}
225,498,597 4,806,692 12,064,358 284,464 242 654,111
31 December 2020
Srage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime ECL  Lifedime ECL
O ASSCLS Aol 0N A8Sets not
Stage | credit- credir-
Legal entities 12-month ECL impaired impaired POCT Tocal
Mot overdue 207,044,215 6,065,257 169,144,235 - 382,253,707
overdue up to 30 days 2,388 685 73426 12,248 948 - 14,711,059
- averdue more than 31 days and
less than 60 days - 618427 6,130,433 - 6,748, 860
- overdue more than 61 days and
less than 90 days - - 2,479,533 = 2.479.5313
- overdue more than 91 days and
less than 360 days - - 6,931,694 - 6,931,694
- overdue more than 1 vear - 23,833,526 2,626,583 26,460,100
209,432,900 6,757,110 220,768,369 2,626,583 439,584,962
Allowance for expected credit losses (2,835,939) (4,825) (55,853,932) {1,075,604) (59,770,300
206,596,961 6,752,285 164,914,437 1,550,979 379,814,662
JI December 2020
Stage 2 Stage 3
Liferime ECL.  Lifetime ECL
O 48SeEs nol 0N assels not
Srage 1 credir- credit-
Individuals 12-month ECL impaired impaired POCT Total
Mot overdue 55,393,984 726,606 8,043,317 785,329 64,949 236
overdue up to 30 days 1,840,067 - 370,662 2.410,729
- overdue more than 31 days and
less than 60 days - 1,355,063 425,116 . 1,780,179
- overdue more than 61 days and
less than 90 days - = 232921 - 232921
- overdue more than 91 days and
less than 360 days - - 1,305,038 - 1,305,038
- overdue more than
1 year B - 4,338,917 4338917
57,234,051 2,081,669 14,915,971 785,329 75,017,020
Allowance for expected credit losses (433,995) (222 487) (4,862,371) (B5,876) (5,604,729)
56,800,056 1,859,182 10,053,600 699,453 69,412,291

As at 31 December 2021 the Company had no borrowers whose total balance exceeded 10% of equity (31 December 2020:
no borrowers).

Collateral and other instruments that reduce credit risk

The amount and type of collateral required by the Company depend on an assessment of the credit dsk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceprability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the undetlying
agreement during the review of the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses.
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The following table provides information on collateral and other credit enhancements secunng loans to corporate customers,
net of loss allowance, by types of collateral as at 31 December 2021:

Fair value of

Fair value of collateral - for
collateral - for collateral
Carrying amount collateral assessed as of
of loans to assessed as of loan inception
customers reporting date date
Stage (12-month exgpected credst losses)
Cash and deposits 2169653 2,169,633 -
Bank guarantees and sureties receved from legal entitie
(rated from B- to BBBE+) 2,435,634 2,435,634
Bank guarantees and sureties recewved from legal entine
{not rated) 99,193 g 90.193
Vehicles 13,688,704 8,078,034 5,610,670
Real estate 319,805,325 148,805,155 171,000,170
Equipment 2943474 2,768,088 175,386
Goods in tumover 335,956 308,713 27.243
Future assets 7,125,937 6,753,797 372,140
Land plots 24289821 17,370,340 6,919,441
Oither collareral 5137741 2824524 213217
Mo collateral or other credit enhancement 23,452,922 - -
Total Stage 1 401 484,360 191,513 938 186,517,500
Stage 2 (Lifetime excpected credit Josses an assets not oredit-fmpaired)
Cash and deposits 131,823 131,823
Bank puarantees and surenes received from legal ennne
{not rated) 5,355 5,355
Vehicles 65,123 15,051 48,072
Real estare 6,535,879 2311,567 4224312
Equipment 362,907 357,505 5402
Furure assets 0,464 9,464 -
Securities - - g
Land plots 158,287 88,330 69,957
Other collateral 627 853 586,041 41,812
Mo collateral or other eredit enhancement 117,949 Z =
Total Stage 2 8,012,640 3,499,781 4,394,910
Stage 3 {Lifetimee expected credit losses o credit-smpatred arrets) =
Cash and deposits 3,099,635 3,099,635
Government guarantees - -
Bank guarantees and surenes received from legal ennne
(rated from B- to BBB+) 69,907 69,907
Bank guarantees and sureties received from legal ennne
{(not rated) 0,831 - 0,831
Vehicles 3,835,838 2,007,502 1,828,336
Real estate 222282324 175.210.615 47.071,609
Equpment 1,979,768 1,105,725 874,043
Shares, equiry shares 467,690 467,690 .
Cioods in mamover 19.927 19,927 -
Furre assers B4 44 5
Land plots 18,973,979 14,849,296 4,124 683
Oither collateral 2,643,602 2,180,252 463,350
Mo collateral or other credit enhancement 339,013 2 -
Total Stage 3 253,721,498 199,010,598 54,371,887
POCT-assetr . <
Real estate 1,797,720 1,797,720
Taotal POCl-assets 1,797,729 1,797,729 .
Total loans to customers 665,016,227 395,822,046 245,284,297
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The following table provides information on collateral and other credit enhancements secunng loans to corporate customers,
net of loss allowance, by types of collateral as ar 31 December 2020:

Fair value of
Fair value of collateral - for
collateral - for collateral
Carrving amount collateral asscssed as of
of loans to assessed as of loan inception
customers reporting date date
Stage T (1 2-month expected credit davres)
Cash and deposits 2,053,270 2053270
Bank guarantees and sureties received from legal entities
BBE+) 3,034,073 3,034,073
Vehicles 12,187,392 12,148,336 30,056
Real estate 200,194 377 198,874,505 1,319,872
Equipment 4,174,394 4,151,780 22614
Gioods in urnover 317,597 298,282 18,315
Furre assets 5,329,305 5,315,969 13,336
Oither collateral 10,119,410 9.928 237 195,173
Mo collateral or other credit enhancemeni 25,987,199
263397017 235 B4 452 1,605,366
Siape 2 (Litetime excpected credliy Josser on assets mol oredie-tmpaired,
Cash and deposits 112,655 112,655
Vehicles T3534 73,534
Feal estate 7220587 7.220.387
Equipment 1,355 1,355 -
Future assets 85,787 85,787 -
Other collateral 1,103,341 1,103,341 -
Mo collateral or other credit enhancemeni 14,408
Total Stage 2 2,611,467 £,597,050
Niape 3 (Lifetime expected credit losses on credit-impatred arcets)
Cash and deposits 2338570 2.338.570
Bank guarantees and sureties received from legal ennnes
BBB+) 95,556 003,356
Grain receipts
Vehicles 3,662,425 3,662,425 -
Feal estate 147756766 146,394 489 1,362,277
Equipment 1,200,163 1200 163
Shares, equity shares 467,690 467 690
Croods in mmover 64,671 64,671 -
Future assets 283 283
Land plots 16,880,057 16,880,057 .
Orther collateral 1,206,434 B40,193 366,241
Mo collateral or other credit enhancement 476,422
Total Stage 3 174,968,037 172,763,097 1,728,518
POCT-asserr
Real estate 2,250,432 2250432
Toral POCT-assets 2,250,432 2,230,432 -
Total loans to customers 449,226,953 419,415,040 3,333,884

In the absence of collateral or other mechanisms for credit quality enhancement, the ECL allowance for Stage 3 loans to

customers at 31 December would be higher by:

Loans to legal entines
Loans to individuals

2021 20240
241,657,140 164,914,437
12,064,358 10,053,600
253,721,498 174,968,037
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Significant credit exposures

As at 31 December 2021, the concentration of net book value of loans izsued by the Company to ten major independent
parties amounted to KZ7T 62,302,703 thousand or 9.39% of the aggregate loan portfolio (31 December 2020: KZT 67,022,951

thousand or 15.00% of the aggregate loan portfolio),

10. Finance lease receivables

As a result of the business combination on 1 December 2021, the Company recognised finance lease recervables in the amount
of the total gross carrping amount of KZT 15,382 710 thousand and the loss allowance of KZT 5,762,457 thousand,

The analysts of finance lease recetvables at 31 December 2021 15 as follows:

3 December 2021
From o5 More than
Up ta I year years 5 years Total

Gross investmients in finance lease 1,788,954 8.917.345 0.970,117 20,676,416
Uneamned deferred finance income from finance

lease {257 ,460) (1,359 463) (3,670,388) (5,287 317)
Investments in finance lease 1,531,488 7,557,882 6,299,729 15,389,099
ECL allowance (498,507) (2,495,731) (2,768219) (5,762,457)
Finance lease receivables 1,032,981 5,062,151 3,531,510 9,626,642

Credit quality of finance lease portfolio

The following table provides information on the eredit quality of the finance lease portfolio as at 31 December 2021;

JiI December 2021
Srage 2 Srage 3
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
Stage 1 o0 ASSErs 1ot on credir-
12-month ECL  credit-impaired  impaired asscts Taral
- not overdue 0RE 354 5,225,230 5,382 631 11,596,245
- overdue up to 30 days - - 192,025 192,025
- overdue more than 31 days and less than 90 days - 1,199,855 1,199,855
- overdue more than 91 dayvs and less than 180
days -
- overdue more than 181 days and less than 1 year = B8, 7H4 BE,TR4
- overdue more than | vear - - 2312190 2,312,190
988,384 5,225,230 9,175,485 15,389,099
Loss allowance (57,262) (320,623} {4,884,572) (5,762,457)
Tortal finance lease receivables 931,122 4,404,607 4,290,913 9,626,642

11. Investment property

Movement i investment property 1s as follows;

Twelve months ended 31 December

2021 2020
Cost
At 1 January 529,474 529,474
Additions 4,381,362 -
Transters from other assers 118,203 =
Disposals 11,696,994) -
At 31 December 3,332,045 529,474
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January (91,311) {81,653)
Amomsanon charge for the year (143,478) {9,658)
Transfers from other assets {30,663)
[Disposal 62,045 -
At 31 December {203,407) (91,311)
Carrying amount at 31 December 3,128,638 438,163
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Dunng the twelve months ended 31 December 2021 the Company received four non residennal premises located in Almary
in the form of investments in share capital, the fair value of which of KZT 4,381,363 thousand was measured using income
approach (Note 19). All these premises are classified as an investment property items on imtal recogmiton, Two of the
premises were sold for KZT 1825926 thousand and KZT 946,918 thousand, with the terms of payment of the initial
contrbution and payment of the remaining part m instalments during 10.5 years and 5.11 years, respectively. The historical
fair value of accounts receivable was K21 936,041 thousand and KZT 698,281 thousand, respectively, using a market discount

rate of 14.3-15.60%. These recetvables are included in other assets Note 12),

Rental income on investment property for the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021 amounted to KZT 179,786 thousand

(the raelve months ended 31 December 2020: KZT 10,585 thousand).

12. Other assets

UOhther non-financial assets comprise the following items:

Advances paid

Inventores

Chther

Other non-financial assets

Oither financial assets compnse the following items:

Accounts receivable:

Recervables from KazAgroProduct JSC
Recervables under instalment sales contracts
Oither receivables

Less: ECL allowance
Other financial assets

It December 31 December
2021 2020
49.632 40913
547,699 91,030
1,311,074 244 263
1,908,405 340,206
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
8.133,127 0,289 0606
4 923 850 1,032,682
2,244 338 797,617
16,301,315 11,120,265
(11,334,678) (9,173.494)
4,966,637 1,946,771

As at 31 December 2021, other financial assets of KZT 3,925,917 thousand are categorised into Stage 2, other financial assets
of KZT 12,375,398 thousand are categonised into Stage 3 (31 December 2020 other financial assets of K2 T 842,964 thousand
are categorised into Stage 2, other financial assets of K21 10,277,301 thousand are categonised into Stage ).

Reconcilianon of the ECL allowance for accounts receivable for the year ended 31 December 2021 s presented below:

Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Toral
ECL allowance at 1 January 29,638 9,143,856 - 9,173,494
Recognised as a result of merger - 2,392 430 = 2,392,439
New assets onginated or purchased 35,588 475,207 - 510,795
Reversal of allowance during the year (22.213) (488,582) - {510,795)
Movements in ECLs for the vear as a result of mansfer
from stage to state and changes in inputs 84,000 (291,252 - {207,162)
Ameounts written off - {24,093 - (24,093)
At 31 December 127,103 11,207,575 - 11,334,678

Reconciliation of the ECL allowance for accounts receivable for the year ended 31 December 2020 is presented below:

Stage 2 Stage 3 Poct Total
ECL allowance at 1 January 12,150 9,572,260 - 9,584,410
New assets onginated or purchased 27,265 - - 27,265
Assets repaid {11,926) (2,223.00%) - {2,235,019)
Movements in ECLs for the year as a result of transfer
from stage to state and changes in inputs 2,149 1,818,791 - 1,820,940
Amounts weitten off - {24,102) - (24,102)
At 31 December 29,638 9,143,856 - 9,173,494

¥



KazAgroFinance Joint Stock Company  Notes to the Financial Statements for 2021

000 KZ2T
13. Due to the Shareholder
Nominal interest 31 December 31 December

Maturity date rate, % Currency 2021 2020
Loan under Agreement No.32 14 December 2032 1.02% KZT 15,276,780 16,231,865
Loan under Agreement No.26 10 February 2041 1.02% KZT 14,760,800 -
Loan under Agreement No. 101 14 December 2033 1.00% KZT 11,667,415 12,316,261
Loan under Agreement No.76 14 December 2025 1.02% EZT 0824432 11,926,326
Loan under Agreement No.85 14 December 2025 1.00%% KZT 7423 489 0,013,088
Loan under Agreement No. 122 14 December 2025 1.00%% KZT 7.380,123 B.962,492
Loan under Agreement No. 135 14 December 2032 1.00%, KZT 8,215,517 8,728,631
Loan under Apreement No.136 14 December 2032 1.00% KZT 8,215,517 8,728,631
Loan under Agreement No.20 31 December 2034 1.00%% KZT 6,515,629 6,839,119
Loan under Agreement No.34 28 September 2034 1.02%s KZT 2,792,169 2,936,996
Amount payable under assignment
contract of 3 July 2018 20 December 2024 5.00%, EZT 1,477,788 1,826,748
Amount payable under debt
transfer agreement of 3 July 20018 9 December 2024 3.00% KZT 634,387 829,693
Loan under Agreement No.124 1 December 2022 10,0086 KZT 76,376 146,690
Loan under Agreement No.81 21 June 2021 14.50-15.50% KZT - 36,174,336
Loan under Apreement No.61 24 Aupust 2032 0.32-1.02% KZT = 29,084,622
Loan under Agreement No.24 20 June 2035 1.02% KZT = 7,166,640
Investment loan under Agreement 31 Dlecember
No.J36 2023 1.02% KZT - 2 640,965
Loan under Agreement No.70 13 October 2024 0,32% KZT 574927

94,260,422 164,128,030

Dunng the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021, as part of the optimisation of the structure of the loan previously issued
t the Company by KazAgro Holding from the National Fund of the Republic of Kazakhstan, by combining the amounts
due under the agreements previously concluded with the toral nominal value as of the date of combination of KZT 58 451,625
thousand and issuance of additional tranche in amount of KZT 11,548,375 thousand, Loan Agreement No.26 of 16 Junc 2021
was signed. The total amount of the loan 15 KZT 70,000,000 thousand, with marunty on 10 Febroary 2041, nominal interest
rate - LO2% pa, effective interest rate - 11.98% pa. The purpose of the loan is financing of investment projects on vardous
areas of agncultural sector development, such as creatton of dairy farms, development of feedlots, creation of storages for
different agrcultural products and others. The conclusion of this agreement resulted in the derecognition of the agreements
(including agreements No.36, 61, 24 and 70) and which were entered into previously, funded from the resources of the
National Fund of the Republic of Kazakhstan, and the recoprition of a new hability under Loan Agreement No.26 dated
16 June 2021, The discount on mital recogminon on loan of KZT 70,000,000 thousand amounted to K2T 56,000928
thousand and was recognized directly in equity within accumulated losses, whereas previously discount in amount of
KZT 11,196,328 thousand was derecognized to reflect the new terms negotiated with the controlling party. As ar 31 December
2021, the carrving amount of the new loan 1s KZT 14,760,800 thousand.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2020 the Company received loans from the shareholder for a total amount of
KZT 33,523,182 thousand, KZT 19,237 468 thousand of which at 4 nominal interest rate of 1.02% and marunty of 10 years
for the finance of investment projects, and the remaining amount of KZT 14,285,714 thousand was received at a nominal
wnterest rate of 1.00%, wath matunty in 14 years for the finance projects for the development of beef cattle breeding, dairy
industry, meat and crop processing, food producton, for the purchase of imgation systems, development of crop production.
Effective interest rates applied vary berween 7.16%-11.48% and 7.30°%-7.91%, respectively. Discount of KZT 11,686,306
thousand on nitial recognition of loans from the Shareholder issued ar below market rates that was parnally recognised in
equity i the amount of KZT 5,435,127 thousand (net of tax of KZT 1,358,782 thousand), was recognized in accumulated
losses, while the remaining part was recogmised within government grants in the total amount of KZT 4,892,397 thousand
(MNore 18).

As ar 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 the Company was in compliance with the requirements related to the
restnicave covenants under the agreements with the creditors.
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14. Debt securities issued
KZT-denominated debt securities issued comprise the following captions:;
Nominal value Carrying amount
Tnterest
rare per
Placement Marurity annum, 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
date date Yo 2021 2020 2021 2020
Fixed mcome bonds (1 ssue of 10 October 10 Olctober
the 4th bond program) 2019 2026 10:75% 3947507 39475017 40,409 865 40,408,952
Fixed income bonds (1 1ssue of 30 June 10 December
the 4th bond program) 2021 2051 15.0 % 35, (00, 000 - 40,953,222 -
Fued income bonds (2issue of 26 Aougust 26 August
the 4th bond program) 2020 2030 10.75% 30,496,202 3,496,202 31,586,439 31589716
21
Fixed income bonds (9 msue of December 21 December
the 4th bond program) 2021 203 11.50°% 3010040, 000 - 30,095,833 -
Fixed income bonds (2 issue of 17 June 17 December
the 2nd bond program) 2015 2022 B0 17390000 18184787 17347174 18052561
Fixed income bonds (1 issue of 20 Awgust 20 February
the 2nd bond program) 2014 2023 B.507% 10,000,000 10,000,000 10754679 10212403
Fixed income bonds (41zsue of
the 3ed bond program) 27 May 2021 27 May 2026 11.50% 9,350,000 - 9451.552 -
Fixed income bonds {1stissue of 19 February
the 15t bond program) 2005 30 March 2026 10.07% 5,189,000 - 5,450,266 -
22
Fixed income bonds {2 1ssuc of December
the 3rd bond program) 16 22 June 2026 14.00% 5,000,000 5,000,006 5,016,438 5.016,202
Fixed mcome bonds {7 ssue of 27 Oletober 27 Oletober
the: 4th bond program) 2021 2031 T 5,000,000 - 3743735 -
I'ed mcome bonds (2 ssue of
the 15t bond program) recognised 21 Olcrober
as a resolt of merper 2ms 21 Apnl 2026 10.07% 2300000 2.345,035 -
30
Fxed income bonds (1 ssue of  Degember 30 December
the 3rd bond program; 2015 2t 8.50% - 22 940,004 - 23,806,530
30
Frxed meome bonds (3 issue of  December 30 January
the 4th bond program) 2020 2022 5.00% = 9,000,000 - 9,001,250
21
December 21 December
Commercil bonds 2020 2021 10.75% = 15,500,001 — 15342645
Commercial bonds #July 2020 8 July 2021 10.75% - 9088489 - 10477275
Diebt securitics issucd 189,200,219 160,584,4% 196,654,238 164,197,490

Durng the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, the Company issued and addinonally placed withun the previous issuance
bonds in the total face value of KZ2T 83,830,001 thousand:

unsecured commercial bonds wath total face value of KZT 4,500,001 thousand (RKZ2C00007177) issued at coupon rate of
10.75% p.a., matunng on 20 December 2021, The funds from the placement have been used for extending loans to the
companies opetating in the agro-mdustrial complex;

unsecured coupon bonds with total face value of KZT 9,350,000 thousand (KZ2C00006120) issued at coupon rate of
11.5(Fa pa., maturing within 5 years. The proceeds from the placement have been vsed for extending loans o the
companies operating in the agro-industrial complex;

unsecured coupon bonds with total face value of KZT 35,000,000 thousand (KZ2C00007755) ssued at coupon rate of
15.00"% p.a., matmrng on 10 December 2031. The funds from the placement will be used to finance the projects of the
agro-industnal complex, on a poonty basis for the production and processing of mear and milk. The Company recognised
the premium of KZT 5930976 thousand on inittal recognition and since the bonds were fully repurchased by the
Shareholder at the above-market rate, the premium was stated as distnbution to the Shareholder, including tax in amount
of KZT 1,186,195 thousand. The Company applied estimared market interest rate of 12.10% p.a. to measure the fair value
of the bonds issued on inital recogninion by discounting their furure contractual cash lows,

unsecured coupon bonds with total face value of KZT 5 000 000 thousand (KZ2COM007953) 1ssued at coupon rate of
T.1% p.a., mamnng within 10 years, the effective interest rate is 11.8% per annum. The funds from the placement have
been used for extending loans to the companies operating in the agro-ndustrial complex under the Employment Roadmap
programme, under which the interest rate for the ulimate borrowers - the entities operating in the agro-industrial complex
- must not exceed 6% with the loan term not exceeding three vears. Thus, the discount of KZT 1,329,537 thousand
calculated on imtial recogniton was accounted for within the government grants.
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unsecured coupon bonds with total face value of KZT 30 000 000 thousand (KZ2C00008316) ssued at coupon rate of
11.3% p.a., maturng within 10 years. The funds from the placement have been used for extending loans to the companies
operaing in agro-industnal complex.

During the rwelve months ended 31 December 2020, the Company placed unsecured coupon bonds with a toral face value

of KZT 76,177,671 thousand;

unsecured coupon bonds worth KZT 11,192,979 thousand (KZ2C00006161) with a coupon rate of 10.75% p.a., matunng in
7 years. Proceeds from placement of bonds have been earmarked to make loans to companies operating in agro-industrial
complex.

- unsecured coupon bonds worth KZT 30,496,202 thousand (ISIN KZ2C00006922) with a coupon rate of 10.75% pa.,
maturing in 10 years. - proceeds from placement of bonds have been earmarked 1o make loans to companies operating
in agro-industrial complex.
unsecured coupon bonds worth KZT 9,988 489 thousand (ISIN KZ2C00006849) with a coupon rate of 10.75% pa.,
maturing in 4 year. Proceeds from placement of bonds have been earmarked to make loans to companies operating in
agro-industnial complex.
unsecured coupon bonds worth KZT 15500001 thousand (ISIN KZ2C00007177) wath a coupon rate of 10.75% pa.,
muaturing in a year, Proceeds from placement of bonds have been earmarked to make loans to companies operating in
agro-mdustnal complex.
unsecured coupon bonds worth KZT 9,000,000 thousand (I5IN KZ2C00007268) with a coupon rate of 5.00% p.a.,
matunng in thirteen (13) months. Proceeds from placement of bonds have been carmarked to make loans to companies
operatng in agro-industnal complex.

15. Payables to the state and budget organisations

Yearof  Nominal interest I December 31 December
maturity rate, % Currency 2021 2020

Loans repayable to state and budget organisations
recognised as a result of menger 2023-2031 0.01% K2l 111,205,741 -
Loans repayable to state and budget organisations  2023-2031 0.01% KT 55, 68,654 44,770,133
166,813,395 34,770,133

Dunng the twelve months ended 31 Diecember 2021, the Company received loans worth KZT 35,029,195 thousand (during
the rwelve months ended 31 December 2020 KZT 12,856,780 thousand) extended under the Programme for the
Development of Productive Employment and Mass Entrepreneurship for 2017-2021 and Employment Roadmap for 2020
2021, The Company recognised a discount of KZT 20,662,665 thousand (durng the twelve months ended 31 December
2020:  KZT 5,191,287 thousand) on initial recognition in the statement of financial position as a hability related to the
government grant which was partially utilised in the relevant pedods. The Company applied estimated marker interest rates
of 8.86% — 12.66% p.a. (dunng the twelve months ended 31 December 2020: 7.25% — 11.48% p.a.) to measure the far value
of the abovementioned loans on mnitial recognition by discounting their future contractual cash flows.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company complied with restrictive covenants under the agreements
with creditors.

16. Other liabilities

Other non-financial assets comprise the following items:;

31 December 3I December
31 December 2020 2019
2021 {restared) {restated)

Rural mortgages 2,076,435 -
Orther raxes pavable 1,373,656 31,048 115,857
Other 130,431 49104 24,401
Other non-financial liabilities 3,580,522 80,152 200,258
JI December 31 December
31 December 2020 2619
2021 {recalculared) {recalculared)

Liabilities on redemption of debt securines issued 23,914,950 -
ECL allowance for contingent habilines (Note 24) 1,092,195 1,045,045 1,255,464
Amount payable under an assignment contract 188,930 366,892 537,662
Accounts payable 930,065 245,114 266,507
Loans received from the UN 25238 . -
Other financial liabilities 26,151,378 1,657,051 2,060,033
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Liabilities on redemsption of debt securities tesued

The outstanding securities of the 1st bond issue under the 3rd bond program, AGKKb6 (NIN KZ2C00003507),with a
redemption date of 30 December 2021 for the total amount of KZT 23,914,950 thousand were repaid on 10 January 2022,
As at 31 December 2021 payables on payments on these bonds were classified as other Liabilines as their maturity under the
contract expired,

17. Taxation

The corporate income rax expense comprses:

2020
2021 {researed)
Current income tax expense (4,589, 802) (3,028,467}
Deferred corporate income tax expense - ongination and decrease of temporary

differences 2,387,348 (1,068,533)
Corporate income tax expense (2,202,454) (4,097,000)
2021 2020

Recognised as a result of a business combination (Note 6) (2149413
Deferred corporate income tax recognised in profir or loss 2,387,348 (1,068,533)
Deferred corporate income tax recognised in equity (7,215,291) {938,639}
Movements in deferred corporate income tax (6,977,356) (2,007,172)

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s current corporate income tax assets totalled KZT 1,785,126 thousand (31 December
2020: hiabilittes totalled KZT 49,345 thousand). The corporate income tax rate for the Company was 20.0% in 2021 and 2020,

The effective CIT rate differs from the starutory CIT rates. Below is the reconciliation of corporate income tax expense based
on the statutory rate with corporate income tax expense recorded in the financial statements:

2021 2020
Profit before corporate income tax 10,897 494 22700885
Statutory corporate INcome ax rae 20%% 20
Theoretical corporate income tax expensc at the statutory rate

(2,179,499) (4,540,177)

Non-taxable income from government sccuntics 520,708 389,304
MNom-deductible expenses (343,663) 53,473
Corporate income tax expensc (2,202,454) {4,097,000)
Corporate income tax recognised i equity 1s distributed between the items as follows:

2021 2020
For agsets 1,186,195 .
For liabilitics (8,401 486) 1938,639)
Corporate income tax (expense)/benefit recognised in equity {7,215,291) (938,639)
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Deferred income tax assets and lahilites and their movement for the respective vears compnsed the following ar
31 December:

Origination and reversal o Origination and reversal
temporary differences _of temporary differences
a1 Within A1 Takeover Within J1
December  profit ar Within  Decemiber of  profit ar Within  December
2019 loss equiry 2020 FAGRI loss equity 2021
Tax effect of deductible
temporary differences
Lioans to customers B.B58.279 1,345,436 - WL2037T15 5,264,223 2,619,034 - 18,087,022
Lovans mo banks 953,170 (335,414 - 597,756 - {205,401) - 392,355
Uither asscts 4,710 O, D05 - 101,624 17371 09,967 - 728,962
Current csnmared habthines T4 6 14,945 - RO 500 92,427 48,948 - 230,854
Giovernment grants JB56,120 (2,024 380, - 1,631,737 3,525,525 1371103 - 6,728,365

Debt securites 1ssued = L = -
Dieferred corporate income

(320,676) 1,186,195 865,519

tax asscts 13,746,898 (922,55T) - 12,824,341 8,899,546 4,123,025 1,186,195 27,033,107
Tax effect of taxable

temporary differences

Due to the Sharcholder (8,492,568 105,420 (UIRG30  (9,325,78T) - L165861  (B401486) (16,561,412)
Drue to state and budget

arganisations (2795317 (201,245) = (3,086,562) (10,753,482) (2,856,280) = [16,696,324)
Property, plant and equipment

and meangible assers (H8.936) 30,840 = [#U08T)  (295.477) {45, 258) = {389,320)
Deferred corporate income

tax liabilities {11,376,821) (145,976) (938,639)  (12,461436) (11,048,959) (L,735677) (BA0L4BG6)  (33,647,558)
Met deferred income tax

agsets (liabilities) 2370077 (1,068,533) (938,639) 362,905 (2149413 2387348  (7,215291)  (6,614,451)

Defetred corporate income tax assets are recogmised only to the extent that it is probable that the furure taxable profit will be
available against which an asset can be unlised.
18. Government grants

1 December 2020
31 December 2021 frestated)

Government grams received from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan
i the form of a loan from stare and budget organisations and Shareholder under
Agnbusiness Development Programme 33,641,832 9,158,681
Government grants received from the Minstry of Agnculrore of the Republic of

Kazakhstan to partally subsidise the repaviment of principal and interest on loans

istued to the borrowers 6873178 3312 BB3
Government grants 40,515,010 12,471,564

Crovernment grants received froms the Governmrent

The Company recorded as government grants the amount of benefits receved in the form of loans at low interest rates
extended by the state and budget orgamsations.
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31 December 2020

31 December 202} {restared)
At 1 January 9,158,651 19,280,627
Giovernment grants reeeved from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan m the
form of a loan trom local execunve bodies (Note 15) 20,662,065 5,191,287
Government grants receved from the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan in the
form of a loan from the Mmistry of Fmance 5,711,976 5,287,920
Government grants recetved in the form of loans from the Sharcholder (Now 13) - 4 892 3497
Government grants received from the Government of the Republie of Kazakhstan in the
form of honds from the NBRE (Note 14) 1,329,537
Recogmized 1n the form of busines: combinatons 17,333,744
Unlization of government grants o issue loans to borrowers under the Smare Programme for
the Development of Productive Employment and Mass Enteepreneurship for 2007-2021
(“1sker™) (6,674, 848) (3,804,083)
Unlisanon of government gprants 1o dssue loans o eligible banks under the Ken-Dala State
Programme (Note 8) (1,954,540) (2,454,647
Unlisation of povernment grants to 1ssue loans o chigible customer- borrowess under the Ken-
[rala State Programme (Note 9) (the compensable porton) {3,757, 430 (2B33278)
U'nlization of government grants to issoe loans o ehpble costomer- borrowers under the
Agribusiness Stare Programme (Moe 9) £1,055,269) (6,739.991)
Unilisation of govermment grants to issue loans to chgilde customer- borrowers under the
Employment Roadmap for 2020-2021 state programme (Note %) (SRR G5 .
Unfisation of govemnment grant (Mot 9) (2,622,720 (8,123, 778)
Unhsation of government grant for previously sssued loans (1,616,100) -
Amornsation for the peaod (1,973,302 (1,447 BOE)
Government grants 33,641,832 9,158,681

Ceverument grants received from the Governmeent of the Republic in the form of @ loan from the Minisiry of Finance

On 25 February 2021, the Company received a short-term loan from the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan
for the total nominal amount of KZT 70,000,000 thousand beanng a nominal interest rate of (L01% per annum and maturing
on 20 December 2021. The loan was recetved as part of the Ken Dala state programme aimed at supporting enterprises in
their spring field and harvesting works. The total amount of loan received was transferred to Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan ]5C
with KZT 31,840,998 thousand (Note 8) to be used for intended purpose stipulated by the aforementioned programme, and
KZT 38,159,002 thousand to be provided directly to customers Note 9).

The discount of KZT 5,711,976 thousand on initial recognition of loans received was recogmised as a government grant
habiliry with 1ts full use durng the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, Unwinding of the discount of KZT 5,711,976
thousand was recorded in interest expense on accounts payable to the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan, The
Company applied an estimated market interest rate of 11.00% per annum to estmate the fair value of the loan on inital
recognition by discounnng future contractual cash flows,

In February 2020 the Company received a short-term loan from the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan for
the total nominal amount of KZT 70,000,000 thousand with a nominal interest rate of 0.01% p.a. and matunty on 20
December 2021, The loan was received as part of the state program “Ken-Dala” aimed at supporting businesses in their spring
planting and harvesting operations. The full amount of loan received KZT 29,555,513 thousand (Note B} was provided to
several second-tier banks with the condirion to use the loan for the purpose stipulated in the above program, and the funds
for the total amount of KZT 40,444 487 thousand (Note 9) were granted directly ro customers.

The discount of KZT 5,287,922 thousand at ininal recognition of loans recerved was recogmised as hability on government
grant with its full wilization dunng the twelve months ended 31 December 2020, Unwinding of discount of KZ2T 5,287,920
thousand was recognised within interest expense on pavables to the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The
Company applied estimated market interest rate of 10.18% p.a. to measure the fair value of the loan at initial recognition by
discounting irs future contractual cash flows,

Subsequent to imital recognition, the Company recorded in profit or loss an amount corresponding to the rencgotiated loan
on preferential terms for borrowers, once the Company had met government programme conditions (Notes 8 and 9). The
Company 1s obligated to distribute benefits to end - borrowers by means of setting low interest rate on loans,

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2021, government grants transferred to profit or loss (Note 22), amounting
to KZT 200,554,771 thousand were included in ‘other expenses’ (durng twelve months ended 31 December 2021:
KZT 25,493,550 thousand).

Gavernment grants received from the Ministry of Agricuftare
Twelve months ended 31 Decermmber

2021 2020
At 1 January 3,312,883 1,971,29%
Received for the perod 18,548,683 10,571,981
Rerumed due o the availability penod expiced (7,632,247 (3,561,922
Ltilization by means of transfer to eligible borrowers who have mer special conditons {7.356.141) (5,068,472
At 31 December 6,873,178 3,312,883

Government grants received from the Ministry of Agnculture are unlised to parnally repay pancipal and interest owed by
botrowers who have received loans for investment projects and to purchase new or previously unused machinery and
equipment. To be eligible to receive these grants, borrowers must mect certain condions,
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19. Equity
Share capetal

In accordance with the Resolution of the Management Board of KazAgro Nanonal Management Holding JSC (ex-
Shareholder) No. 9 of 4 March 2021, the Company issued 12,633,932 ordinary shares at an offer pnce of KZT 1,000 (one
thousand) per ordinary share. These shares were paid by means of transferring property of ex-Shareholder, with the fair value
of KZT 6,186,092 thousand on inital recognition. Properties received consist of four non-residential premises located in
Almaty with the total value of KZT 4,381,363 thousand (Note 11) held by the Company as mvestment property items;
residential and non-residential propertes, land plots, fumirure and other equipment for the total amount of KZT 1,766,830
thousand, classified by the Company as assets held for sale as of the reporung date; the rest of the amount of KZT 37,899
thousand compnse other tems classified by the Company as property, plant and equipment and invenrory as at 31 December
2021,

In March 2021, in accordance with the Decree of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 952 of 31 December
2020, pursuant to a rakeover agreement of 26 February 2021 and a deed of transfer between Baiterek NAH J5C and KazAgro
NMH J5C, 100% of the Company's ordinary shares totalling 180,758 928 shares have been transferred to Baiterck NMH |SC.

In accordance with the Resolunon of the Board of Baterek Nanonal Managing Holding [SC (the “Sharcholder) No. 65,21
of 13 December 2021, the Company issued 78,830,137 ordinary shares to the Sole Shareholder, at an offering price of
KZT 1,019.55 {one thousand and nineteen tenge and 55 tyn) per ordinary share to pay for 100% {(one hundred percent) of
the Fund’s shares acquired.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of authonsed and issued ordinary shares of the Company 15 259,589,065, of which
253,141,225 shares have been paid in full by the Sole Shareholder (31 December 2020: 168,124,996 shares).

Reserve capital
During the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021, the Company increased reserve capital by B2ZT 5,898,015 thousand. In

accordance with the Company’s policy, reserve capital is established to cover general rizks including future losses and other
contingent risks and circumstances. Reserve capital 1s subject to distnbution based on the decision of the Shareholder.

Dipedends
Durning the rwelve months ended 31 December 2021, in accordance with the Deasion of the Sole Shareholder of 12 March

2021, the Company declared and paid dividends of KZT 13,762,035 thousand ot KZT 78.95 per ordinary share for the vear
ended 31 December 2020, They were paid on 8 June 2021,

Dunng the twelve months ended 31 December 2020, in accordance with the Decision of the Sole Shareholder of 29 May
2020, the Company declared dividends of KZT 16,034,036 thousand or KZT 95,37 per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2019, They were paid on 26 August 2019,

The book value per ordinary share caleulated in accordance with the methodology of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange 15 as follows:
31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Assets 800,484 978 547,538,950
Less intangible assets (624,683} (245.064)
Less habilities (535,795,537) (387,801,310)
Met assets 270,064,758 159,492,585
Number of ordinary shares 253,141,225 168,124,996
Book value per ordinary share (KZT) 1,066.85 948.65

20. Credit loss expenses

The table below presents the ECL expense for financial mstruments recognised in profit or loss for the vear ended
31 December 2021:

Note __ Stagel _ Stage2 __ Stage3 POCI Total
Cash and cash equivalents 7 938 - = - 938
Loans to banks 8 (7.197) = - = (7,197)
Loans to customers 9 (197,192) 40410 356,960 25,924 226,102
Investment secuntes 28,365 - = == 28,365
Other financial assets 12 = 84,090 (291,252) = (207,162)
Credit related commitments 23 36,484 = = = 36,484
Total credit loss expenses (138,602) 124,500 65,708 25,924 77,530
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The rable below presents the ECL expense for financial instruments recognised in profit

31 December 2020

or loss for the vear ended

Note Srage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCT Toral
Cash and cash equivalents 7 [3,101) = += = (3,101)
Lasans tor banks & (115,742 = = = {115,742)
Lawamis 0 customirs 9 (1,486,158) 219,807 5234617 162,568 4,830,834
Investment secunnes 1,178 = = - 1,178
Cither Anancial assers 12 = 17 488 (404,302 = (386,814)
Credit related commitments 23 (210,419% - = (210,419)
Total credit loss expenses {1,814,242) 937,295 4,830,315 162,568 4,115,936
21. Personnel and other administrative expenses
Personnel and other operatng expenses comprse:

2021 2020

Personnel expenses and other payments (4,022 547) (3,285,665)
Social secunty contnbutions 351,213 (309,043
Personnel expenses {4,373,762) (3,594,708)
CHEEE0UTCIE CoErs (592.673) (531,905)
CMfice rent and mantenance (479,206) (427,100
Taxes and other mandarory payments to budget [225,708) (194, 780)
Depreciaton and amortizaton {332.873) (152,666)
Transportanon costs {136,303) (133,635)
PPE and intangnble assets techmical mantenance {117,153} (62,104)
Audit expenses (96, 30 (47 958)
Communication services 77A52) (77, 30)
Comsulting expenses 71,483 (16,564)
Business travel expenses (69,116) {(42,001)
Marketing and advertising (66,172) (B3,995)
Costs of assigning/ warching/ maintaining ranngs services {65.831) (55,594
The Board of Directors administrative expenses (47,104) (10,630
Statwonary and prmting (36,184 (37,549
Secunty services {34,749 (37.920)
Information services {27,007 (18,610)
Matenals (23,933) (26,733)
Insurance expenscs (17.29% 79,944}
Bank services (9,789 (9,695}
Personne] training (8,892 (T A471)
Charity and sponsorship - (19,493}
Other (99,956 (106,679
(nher operating expenses (2,635,235) {2,180,486)

22,  Other expenses

Cther meome from utthsaton of government grants (Note 18)

Amaortisation of povernment geant (Note 18]
Unlisation of government grant for previously issued loans

Loss on il recognition on loans to banks under the Ken-Dala programme (Note 8)

Laws on anitial pecogmition on loans to customers under the Ken-Dala programme (Note

%

Loss on mitial recognition on loans to costomerns under the Isker programme (Note 9)
Loss o anitial fecognition on loans to customers under the Agribusness Development

Programme

Laxss om anitial recognition on loans to customers under the Employment Roadmap for

2020-2021
Laoss om iminal recogniton on other loans 1o customers
COrther (expenses)/ income

Other expenses

Twelve months ended 31 December

2021 2020
16,065,460 24,045,742
1,973,202 1,447,808
1.616,100 )
(1,954,546) (2454,642)
(4,027,401 (3,678,827
(6,674,848) (3,894,053
(1,055,269) (6,739.991)
{900,656) :
(25,782,983) (10,891,787
(391,227) (268.314)
(20,232,159) (2,434,065)
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Other income from utlisation of government grants was recogmised as imcome based on the results of compliance with the
rerms of the relevant government programmes (Note 18},

23, Commitments and contingencies

Taxation

Eazakhstam commercial, and m pattiuuhlr, 1ax ltgih]aliun comtaing n'.g'ularmnﬁ, inr:'rpn'mrinn of which could vary, and 1n
certain cases, the legislation could be amended with indirect retrospective impact.  Also, the Company’s management's
interpretation of the legislation may differ from that of tax authorities, and as a result, transactions carned out by the Company
could be estimated by tax authorities in another way, and this could result in an additional charge of taxes, fines and penaltes,
The Company's management believes that all necessary tax accruals were fulfilled and, correspondingly, there were no
allowances charged m the starements. Tax penods remain open for 5 (five) years. Managemenr believes that its interpretanon
of the legislation as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 15 approprate and the Company's positions i terms of
taxes, currency Jegislagon and customs dunes will be confirmed.

Legal matters

In the normal course of business, the Company 15 the subject of legal actons and claims, Management believes that the
potential habilities, if any, resulang from such actons and clams will not have a materdal adverse effect on the Company's
future financial positon or performance,

Management 15 unaware of any significant, pending or threatened claims against the Company.
Credit related commitments
Commitments and contingent liabilines of the Company compnse:

31 December
31 December 2021 2020

Credit related commitments
Loan commitments 155,298,995 96,630,974
Allowance for expected credit losses {1,092,195) (1,045,045)
154,206,800 95,585,920

Orperating lease liabilities

Up to 1 year 46,402 25908
Commimments and contingent liabilities 154,253,202 95,611,837

Credit related commitments

The rotal outstanding contractual commitments above do not necessanly represent future cash requirements, as these credit
related commitments may expire or terminate without being funded.

The Loan Commitment Agreement provides for the rght of the Company to unilaterally withdraw from the agreement if
unfavourable conditions arise for the Company, and if no resources for lending are available.

The following is an analysis of movements m ECL allowance:

Twelve monchs ended 31 December

Loan commitments 2021 2020
Stage ! Stape 1
At 1 January 1,045,045 1,255 464
Movement in ECLs duning the year 36,484 210419
Takeover of FAGR] J5C 10,666 -
31 December 1,092,195 1,045,045

24, Risk management
Introduction

Risk 12 inherent in the Company’s activities. The Company manages these risks through a process of ongoing idennfication,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of sk management is crncal to the
Company's continuing profitability and each individual wathin the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to
his or her responsibilities. The Company 1s exposed to credit, liquidity and market nsk. It also subjects to operanng nisks.

The independent msk control process does not include business rsks such as changes in the cconomic environment,
technology and industry. They are monitored through the Company's strategic planning process.

Rusk: management rirvcture

The Board of Directors 1s ulimately responsible for identifving and controlling risks; however, there are separate independent
bodies responsible for managing and momtonng rsks,
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Buaard of Directars

The Board of Directors 15 responsible for the overall nsk management approach and for approving the nsk strategies and
prnciples.

Management Board
The Management Board has the responsibiliny to monitor the overall nsk process within the Company.

Bisk comtral

The Risk Managemenr Department is responsible for implementing and maintaining nisk related procedures to ensure an
independent control process, and for monitoring compliance with risk prineiples, policies and lmits, across the Company.
The Company’s Risk Management Department comprises two separate units: financial nsk management and credit nsk
departments.

Treasury

The Company Treasury is responsible for managing the Company’s assets and habilities and the overall financial structure. Tt
15 also pamarily responsible for the funding and liquidity nsks of the Company.

Internal Awdit

Risk management processes throughout the Company are audited annually by the internal audit function, that examines both
the adequacy of the procedures and the Company's compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all
assessments with management and reports its findings and recommendations directly to the Company’s Board and Board of
Directors.

Risk measirement and reporting systemi

The Company’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss hikely to arise in normal circumstances
and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed to analvse, control and identify early risks. This
information is presented and explaned to the Board, the Board of Directors and the head of each business unit. The report
mncludes agpregate credit exposure, credit metac forecasts, hold limit exceptions, liquidity ratios and dsk profile changes. On
a monthly basis detailed reporting of industey, customer and geographic risks takes place.  The Board of Directors receives a
comprehensive nsk report once a quarter which 15 designed to provide all the necessary mformation to assess and conclude
on the nsks of the Company,

Eosceesitve vk concentraivon

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of nsk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus
on mamntaning a diversified portfolio, Identified concentrations of credit rsks are controlled and managed accordingly.

Credit nsk

Credit risk 15 the rsk that the Company will incur a loss because 1ts customers, chients or counterpartics faled to discharge
their contractual obligations, The Company manages and controls credit nisk by setting limits on the amount of nsk it is
willing 1o accept for individual counterparties, and by monitonng exposures for such limits. For example, to avoid
concentrations of credit risk with one or a group of affiliated companies, a imit of up to 25.00% of the Company’s equry has
been set. Counterparty-bank limits for interbank transactions are established by the Sharcholder,

The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions, carried out by the Company’s designared business
units. The credit quality review process allows the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the nsks to which it is
exposed and take corrective action.

The carrying amount of components of the statement of financial position without the influence of nsk mutgation through
the use of master netting agreements and collateral agreements, most accurately reflects the maximum credit exposure on
these components.

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit nisk for each class of financial instrument, references shall be made 1o
the specific notes. For more detail on impact of collateral and other risk mitgation techniques sec Note 9,

Impairmeni assessment

The Company ealculates ECL based on several probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted using the EIR. A cash shortfall is a difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity following the
contract and the cash flows thar the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the ECL ecalculations are outhned below and
the key elements are as follows:
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Probability of Probability of Default 1s an estimare of the likelihood of default over a given nme honzon. A default
Default (P may only happen at a certain time over the assessed penod if the facility has not been previously

derecogmnised and is still in the portfolio,

Exposure at default  Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected

(EAD) changes in (EAD) the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of pancpal and interesr,
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities and accrued
interest from missed payments.

Loss given default Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss ansing in the case where default occurs ar a piven time. It

(LGLY) is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It 1s usually expressed as a percentage
of the EAD.

The ECL allowance 15 based on the credit losses expected to anse over the bife of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss
or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in eredit nisk since orgimanion, in which casc, the allowance is based
on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL). The 12m ECL 15 the portion of LTECL that represents the ECLs that
result from default events on a financial mstrument that are possible within the 12 months afier the reporting date. Both
LTECL and 12mECL are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the established matenaliry
threshold.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting peniod, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considenng the change in the risk of a default
occurang over the remaining life of the financial instrument. Based on the above process, the Company groups its financial
assets as described below:

Stage 11 When loans ase first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECL. Srage 1 also
includes loans and other credit lines, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2; When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit nsk since ongnation, the Company records an
allowance for the hfetime ECL. Stage 2 also includes loans and other credit lines, where the credit nsk
has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Credit-impaired loans. The Company recognises an allowance for the lifetime ECL.

POCL Purchased or onginated credit-impaired (POCI) assets are financial assers that are credit impaired on
imitial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value and interest revenue is subsequently
recogmised based on a rsk-adjusted EIR, ECL allowance is only recognised or released to the extent
that there is a subsequent change i the lifetime expected credit losses.

Dhefinition of defarelt and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all
cases when the borrower becomes 60 days past due on its contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a vadery of instances
that may mdicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occut, the Company carefully considers whether the event should
result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 1s
appropaate. Such events include:

. assigning the external credit rating of the counterparty as D" by an external rating agency;

. restructurng due to deterioration of the financaal posinon of the borrower;

. the death of the horrower;

. recogninion of the collateral / loan agreement as mnvalid by court order;

. imprisonment of the borrower by sancuon /court decision;

. filing a claim for recognition of the borrower as bankrupt in accordance with the legslation of the Republic of
Kazakhstan;

. enforcement in court;

. cross-default (if the information is available with the Company).

In accordance wath the Company’s policy, financial mstruments are transferred from Stage 3, when none of the cotena for
the occurrence of a default was observed at the reporting date. The decision as to whether an asset should be classified as
Stage 2 or Stage 1 depends on whether there 1s an indicaton of an increase in credit risk at the reporting date since initial
recognition.
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Treassry and interbank relationships

The rreasury and interbank relationships of the Company comprise second-tier banks (STBs), including guaranteed loans
provided by STBs, to which external credit ratings are assigned by at least by one of the three international rating agencics
(Fitch Ranngs, Moody's lnvestors Service, S&I Global Ratings). For these relatonships, the Company assesses each
counterparty separately. For counterparties with an external rating provided by international rating agencies or other available
sources, the Company uses the prolability of default according to the Moody's Investors Service (corporate ratings).

Aprrtmsiness bnding

In the case of agnbusiness lending, the Company's strucrural divisions invalved in calculating provisions perform work to
determine whether there are indicators of a significant increase in credit dsk, as well as loan impairment/default, The credit
risk assessment 15 based on vanous historical, current and forward-looking information such as:

. Historical financial information together wath forecasts and budgets prepared by the client. This financial information
includes realised and expected results, solvency ratios; liquidity ratios and anyv other relevant ratios to measure the
client's financial performance.

. Macroeconomic information.

s Other reasonable and supportable information about the quality of the chent’s management and capabilities thar is
relevant to determining the entiry’s performance.

Exgposure at defanit (EAD)

Exposure at default (EALD) 15 the gross carrying amount of financial instruments subject to impairment assessment and it
reflects both the ability of the client to mcrease its debe as it approaches default and the possibility of carly repayment.

Loy given defani

To determane the loss given default (LG1), the Company takes into consideration cash repayments from the borrower after
default {(Post-Default Rate - RR (Cash)) and collateral on the loan. The RR (Cash) is assessed once a quarter. The value of the
collateral is reviewed every month,

As part of determining cash flows, monthly cash repayments on defaulted loans (not including foreclosure amounts) are
analysed for at least the last 5 vears and monthly cumulative RR (Cash) for five vears s caleulated,

The credir nisk assessment is based on a standardised LGD assessment framework thar results in a cerrain LGD rate. These
LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in compatison to the amount expected to be recovered or realised from any
collateral held.

Segniffcant tnorease in credif risk

At each reporung date, the Company assesses whether the credit nsk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Company uses the change in the nsk of a default occurting over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. The Company
compares the nsk of default on a financial instrument as at the reporting date with the dsk of default on a financial instrument
as at the dare of ininal recognition, and considers reasonable and supportable information thar i available wathout undue cost
or effort, which indicates a significant increase in credit risk from the time of initial recognition of the relevant instrument,

If reasonable and supportable forward-looking informanon is available without undue cost or effort, the Company does not
rely solely on information on overdue payments in determining whether credir sk has increased significantly since nitial
tecognition. However, when such information is not available, the Company uses information on overdue payments and the
existence of restructuring of the borrower’s debt in determining whether the credit nsk has increased significantly since the
initial recognition of the asset,

Crrouting financtal assets smeaswred on a colleciive bais
Dependent on the factors below, the Company calculates ECLs either on a collective or on an individual basis.

The Company assesses ECL on an individual basis for the following assets:

. all financial assets with indicators of impairment and/ or default with a total debt of more than 0.2% of equity as at the
previous reporting date according o the financial statements;

. treasury and interbank relanonships (for example, amounts due from banks, cash cquivalents and investment securities
measured at amortised cost);

. financial assets that were classified as POCI at the tme of derecognition of the onginal loan and recopminion of the
new loan as a result of debt restructuring.
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The Company calculates ECL on a collectve basis for financial assets with no indicators of impairment /default and/or debt
of less than .2% of equity as at the previous reporting date according to the financial statements. When performing an
assessment on a collective basis, segmentation of loans with similar nisk characteristics for collective impairment evaluation is
performed. ECLs for assets assessed on a collective basis are caleulated for each segment separately,

Forward-loaking information and muliiple ecomomic scenariog
In its ECL models, the Company relies on macroeconomic forecast informanon on GDP growth rates as economic inpurs,

The choice of the macroeconomic factor is due to the fact that it is one of the most general (broad) indicators, in economic
terms, that reflects the influence of many other factors.

To obrain forward-looking informadon, the Company relies on data from external sources (official website of the relevant
state authorities, the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan and other external information sources). The table below
shows the values of forecast economic vanables/assumptions used in each economic scenario to assess ECLs,  The data for
the column *Subsequent years’ is a long-term average, and therefore 1s the same for all scenanos as at 31 December 2021:

Assigned Subsequemt

Key facrors ECL scenario  probability, % 2020 2023 Fears
GDP rate growth

Opumastc 16% 1.41 212 1.33

Basic 68% 0.41 1.12 0:33

Pessimistic 16% (0.59) 0.12 (0.67)

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are concentrated in the Repubbc of Kazakhstan.
Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidiry risk 15 the nsk that the Company wall be unable ro meer its payment obliganons when they fall due under normal
and stress circumstances. To hmit this nsk, management has arranged diversified funding sources. Management manages
assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basts, This incorporates an assessment
of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure addinonal funding if required.

Awalyss of financial fabilittes by remarning contractual meturities

The rable below summarnses the marunty profile of the Company’s financial habilities at 31 December 2021 and 2020, based
on contractual undiscounted payments.

Demand and
fessthanl] Fromle From3ew6 From6rel2 More than i
At 31 December 2021 month 3 months months months year Total
MNon-derivative financial liabilites
Loans from the Parent
Company T9.427 1.240.797 459 388 14,479,090 179,368,899 195,627,601
Loans from state and
budget orpanizations = 3477238 4,170,159 2,359,407 240261179 250,467,983
Llehuspmuntor ssued — 4723578 5,772,671 28241249 207006202 335,743,790
Orther fnancial
Labilities 23.914,950 = = 1,144,233 25,059,183
Total liabilities 23.,994.377 9,441,613 10,402,218 46,423,979 716,636,370 806,898,557
Credir related
commitments £ = 452 4,099 1,087,644 1,092,195
Demnand and
fess than 1 Fromlimw3 From3twé Froméwo 12 More than !
month months months months vear Toeal
Mon-derivative financial liabilities
Loans from the Parent
Company 545439 3,266,889 37952304 17.361,861 163,039,330 222,165,883
Loans from state and
budget organisations = 1,689.022 1,934 985 4414369 52,189,325 60,227,701
Debt secunties 1ssued - 3,511,790 6,183,367 43,505,384 236875427 200,075,968
Other financial
liabilities = = = 428,560 183 446 612,(H16
Total liabilities 545,439 8,467,701 46,070,716 65,710,174 452,287,528 573,081,558
Credit related
commitments = = 449 33,451 1,011,145 1,045,045
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The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Company’s contractual commitments and contingencies.
Each undrawn loan commitment 1s included in the nme band contamng the earliest date it can be drawn down,

Lessthan3 From3w 12 Fromlro 5 Over
months months vears 5 years Toral
2021 155,298,995 - - = 155,298,995
2020 96,630,974 = = - 96,630,974

The Company expects that not all of the connngent habilites or commitments will be drawn before the expiry of the
commitments,

Market risk

Market sk 15 the risk that the fair value or furure cash flows of financial instruments wall fluctuate due to changes in market
vaniables such as interest rates and foreign exchanges,

Tuterest rate risk

Interest rate nsk anses from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments. The interest rate for assets and babilines of the Company 15 fixed,

Carrensy rik

Currency nsk is the nsk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates,
The Company is not exposed to currency tisk as all its assets and liabilities are denominated in KZT.

Operational risk

Operational risk 15 the nsk of loss ansing from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events, When controls fal 1o
perform, operatonal fsks can cause damage to reputanon, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The
Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but a control framework and monitoning and responding to potental
risks could be effective tools to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access rights, authonsation
and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit,

25. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Amounts due
to the
Governmertt Total
of the  Amounts due Habilieies
Amounts due  Amounis due Debt Republic of to the state from
to the e credit securities Kazakhstan and budger financing
Sharcholder institutions issued organisations activitics
Carrying amount at 31
December 2020 155,214,588 9,876,118 86,340,978 - 36,435,103 287,866,787
Additions 33,523,182 = 76,206,439 T0,000,000 12,856,780 192,586,401
Repayment (20.533,B89) {9, BO0 MY - {0,000, 0 {3.066,250) (103,400,139}
Dividends declared 16,034,030 - - - - 16,034,030
Payment of dividends (16,034,036 - - = = {16,034,036)
Discount on ininal recognition
of liabilitics ar fair value (3.738.641) - (5,287 922 (5,038,235 (20,0464, 798)
Oither 5,662,790 (76,118} 1,650,073 5,287,927 3582735 16,107 402
Carrying amount at 31
December 164,128,030 - 164,197,490 - 44,770,133 373,095,653
Carrying amount at 2020 164,128,030 - 164,197,490 - 44,770,133 373,095,653
Addinons 18,591,199 = B3.0951 457 Ti0,000, 000 35,029,196 207,571 852
Repayment (32,182,190 - (38,988,349 (70,0006, 00N (10,152235) (171322774
Dividends declared 13,762,035 - - = - 13,762,035
Payment of dividends (13,762,055 - = = (13,762,035)
Dhseount/premium on inital
recogmtion of labilities ar fair
value (42,302.26%) 4,601,440 (5,711,976) (20,368,775 [63.781.580)
Reclassification (23.914.950) (23.914.950)
Recopnieed due to business
combination - - T.732.456 2 112,360,228 120,092 684
Oither 6,025,652 - (925,.306) 5,711,976 5,175,848 13,988,170
Carrying amount at 31
December 2021 94,260,422 - 196,654,238 - 166,814,395 457,729,055
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The “Other’ item includes the effect of accrued but not yet pad interest on lahilines ansing from financing actvities. The
Company classifies the interest paid as cash flows from operanng activities.

26. Fair value of financial instruments

All assets and habilites for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed in the financial Statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, hased on the lowest level inpur that 1s sigmficant to the fair value measurement as a
whaole:

*  Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in actove markets for idenntcal assets or liabilites;

* Level 2 = valuation techniques for which the lowest level mpur thar s significant to the fate value measurement 15 directly
or inditectly observable;

¢ Level 3 — valuption techniques for which the lowest level inpur that is significant to the fair value measurement 1s
unohservable.

The followang table provides an analysis of financial mstruments whose fair values are disclosed by levels of the hierarchy of
sources of fair value:

Fair value measurement using

Inpur data Inpue dara Input daca
of of af

Valuation dare Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toeal
3 December 2021
Asgers with disclosed Fair value
Cash and eash equivalenes 31 December 2021 - 102,853,173 - 102,853,173
Loans to banks 31 December 2021 — 13,650,671 13,650,671
loans to customers 3 December 2021 = 386,861.953 191427526 578289479
Finance liase recervables 3 December 2021 = 3839375 4.291 425 8,130,800
Investment securities 31 December 2021 - 835,801 = 835 491
Oither financial assers 31 December 2021 - 4.966,637 = 4,066,637
Liabilities whose fair value iz disclosed
Due 1o the Shareholder 31 December 2021 - 87,047,530 - 7047 530
Due to state and budger ogmmsanons 31 December 2021 - 160,515 209 - 160515209
Debt securities isgued 31 December 2021 - 197,086,612 = 197,086,612
Oither financial lainlites 31 December 2021 = 26,127 826 - 26,127 B26
Ar 31 December 2020
Assets with disclosed fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 3 December 2020 - 75643105 - 75,643,105
Laans to banks 31 December 2020 - 11,935 299 - 11,935,200
TAmns oo CusHsmers 31 December 2020 220,671 187 199423926 420,095,115
Investment secunties 31 December 2020 = 658 279 = 658,279
Oither financial assets 31 December 2020 - = 1L.B61.095 1,861,095
Liahilitics whose fair value is disclosed
e to the Sharcholder 31 December 2020 = 148,455,904 - 145455 004
Dhue to stare and budger organisanons 31 December 2020 40,597 531 s 40,597 531
Dxebt secunitics 1saued 31 December 2020 - 150,872,522 - 150,872,522
Oither Anancial liabilides 31 December 2020 - 595,985 = 505,985

Financial instruments not measured at fair value in the condensed statement of financial position

A comparison of the carrving amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial imstruments presenred mn the financial
statements is provided below. Fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial labilides are not presented in the table,
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Unrecogrised

Carrying amount Fair value profit/(Toss)
Financial assers
Cash and cash equivalents 102,853,173 102,853,173 -
Loans to banks 12,708,512 13,650,671 942,159
Lians to customers 665,016,227 57B.2B9 479 (B6,726,748)
Finanee lease recetvables 0,626,642 8,130,800 (1,495,842
Investment securites 839 325 835 501 (3,434
Oither financial assers 4 966,637 4066637 -
Financial habilies
e ro the Shareholder 094 260,422 B7.047.530 7212892
Due ro state and budger orgamsanons 166,814,305 160,515,209 6,299,186
Diebt secunties 1ssued 196,654,238 197086612 432374,
Orther financial habilines 26,127 826 26,127 826 =
Total unrecognised change in unrealised fair value (74,204,161)

31 December 2020
Unrecognised

Carrying amount Fair value profit/(lass)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 75,643 105 75,643,105 -
Lavans to banks 14,941,678 11,935,209 (3,006,379}
Loans to customers 449,220,953 420,095,115 (29,131 838)
Investment securitcs 670,250 658,279 (11,971}
Oither financial assces 1,946,771 1,861 0105 (B5,676)
Frnancial liabilitics
Due to the Sharcholder 164,128 030 148,455,904 15,672,126
e o stare and budges orgamsatons 44,770,133 40,597 531 4,172,602
Debt secunties issued 164,197 490 150872522 13324 968
Oither financial habilites 608,002 505,085 1207
Total unrecognised change in unrcalised fair value 045,849

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments,
which are not recorded at fair value in these financial statements,

Arsets whase fair value approsanates (heir present value

For financial assers and financial liabilides that are liquid or have a short maturity (Jess than three months), it is assumed that
their present value approximates fair value. This assumption also applies to the call deposits and savings accounts with no
fxed mamety date.

Fised rate insiraments

For histed debt instruments, the fair value 15 based on quoted market prices. In case of non-quoted debt instruments, a
discounted cash flow model 15 used using the current interest rate, taking into account the remitning pedod to matunty for
debr instruments with similar terms and credit nisk.

For loans to banks and loans to customers future cash flows are discounted using an average market rate of financial
instruments with similar marurities, based on statistics published by NBRK. This approach has been used to measure the fair
value of loans 1o customers. As at 30 December 2021, an average market rate was 10.54-16.70%, pa- (31 December 2020:
9.60-14.60% p.a.).

For habilities whose fair value 15 disclosed in the financial statements, future cash flows are discounted at market rate calculated
using build-up model using all observable inputs such as KASE yield curve and credit spread for the rating of the Company
adjusted by maturity and published by S&P (Capital I(} financials). As at 31 December 2021, the market rate used to measure
the fair value of loans raised was 10.42-1247% pa. (31 December 2020: 592-11.48% pa). Future cash flows inclhude
repayment of a pancipal debt and interest calculated at the contracrual mterest rate applied to the principal debt.
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27. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The following table shows assets and liabilities by expected matunties: See Note 25 Risk Management for the Company's
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

2021 2024
Within one More than 1 Within ane More than 1

VEAr yedr Toral year year Toeal
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 102,853,173 - 102,853,173 75,643,105 - 75,643,105
Dhue from banks 3,526,004 9182 508 12,708,512 3,290,300 11,651,378 14,941,678
Loans to customers 143,896,846 521,119,381 665,016,227 149,158, 337 300,068,616 $49,226,953
Finance lease recevalles 1,032,981 B,593,661 9,626,642 — = =
Assets held For sale 1,601,806 - 1,600 Bl 3400 307 o 3,409 307
Investment securitics 251412 587,913 839,335 - 670,250 670,250
Investment property = 3,128,638 3,128,038 = 438,163 438,163
Property, plant and equipment = 1,425,804 1,425,804 — 314,557 314,557
Intanghle azsers - 624,683 624,683 = 245,064 245,064
Dieferred corporate income tax assets 1,785,126 - 1,785,126 - 362,905 362,905
Chther assets 3644198 3,230,844 6,875,042 1,505,199 781,778 2286977
Total assets 258,591,546 547,893,432 206,484,978 233,006,248 314,532,711 547,538,959

2021 2020
Within one More than 1 Within one Maore than |

yesr yer Toval veir yesr Toral
Liabilities
e to the Sharehobder T.683,503 B6, 576,850 94,260,422 55,771,725 108,556,305 164,128,030
[Debt secunties isswed 21,026,916 175,637,322 196,654, 238 52,394,152 111,803,338 164,197 490
Dhue to state and budger
DEEAHEATIS 6,770,617 160,043,778 166,814,205 6384741 38,385,392 44,770,133
Current corporie Ncome tax
labilines - .~ - 49,345 - 49,345
Deferred corporate income tax
liabilioes s 6,014,451 6,614,451 - = =
Current esnmared lhabalities 1,205,120 = 1,205,120 447,545 - 447,545
Giovernment grants 6873178 33,641,832 40,515,010 3312883 9,158,681 12,471,504
Ovther lababines 20,731,901 - 29,731,901 1,564 3540 172 853 1,737,203
Tuotal habilites 73,201,295 462,504,242 535,795,537 119,924,741 267,876,569 387,800,310
MNet position 185,300,251 £5,389,190 270,689,441 113,081,507 46,656,142 159,737,649

28. Segment reporting

The Company’s operations are highly integrated and constitute a single business scgment for the purposes of IFRS 8 Segment
Reporting. The Company’s assets are concentrated in the Republic of Kazakhstan, and revenues are denved from operations
tn, and connected wath, the Republic of Kazakhstan, The Chief Operating Decision Maker, in the case of the Company, the
Chairman, only receives and reviews the information on the Company as a whole.

29, Related party transactions

In accordance with 1AS 24 Related Party Disclossres, parties are considered to be related of one party has the ability to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In considenng

each possible related party relationship, attention 15 directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal
form.,

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties mught not. Prices and terms of such transactons may differ
from prices and terms of transactions berween unrelated parties.

The Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan controls the Company’s operations through the Shareholder.
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Balance of related party transactions as at the end of the reporting period and respective amounts of income and expenses are

provided below:

JI December 2021 31 December 2020
Entities
under Enrtities
CEOMTITNGN under
coneral of COMATEN
Nomin the Government- Nomin comeral af  Government-
al rare, Sharcholde Sharcholder refared  al rare, the relared
% r organisations %s Shareholder Shareholder organisations
Assels
Cash and cash
equivalents - - = 20 486,336 - = = 26,898,863
9.70-
Investment secunties 12.00 - 397,255 242070 1200 670,250 -
Loans ro customers 5.00 = 11,282,534 = 5.00 = 13632477 =
Current compomte
INCOME fax = - = 1,785,126 = — = -
Dreferred corporate
INCOme X assets - = = o g = = 362905
Liabilities
(RLIS 032
Duee 1o the Sharcholder 500 94260422 — — 1550 164,128,030 - -
[Pue to state and budget
AT A IO 0.01 - - 166,414 395 0.1 - - 44,770,133
TA0- 5.00-
Dbt secuntics 1ssued 15.00 115,185,764 =] 71,996,304 14.00 56,359 847 TOT 237 106,518,295
Current corporate
income ax habilnes - — = - - = 49,345
Deferred corporate
ncome tax labibcs = = 0,431,650 = = = -
Clovernment grants - - 40,515,010 - - 12,471,564
Cither habilities - - - 23,914,950 = = =
Twelve months ended 31 December Twelve months ended 31 December
2021 2024
Entities under
Entities under COMNTICN
commaon  Government- controf of the  Government-
conerol of the refared Shareholder refated
Shareholder  Sharcholder organisations  Sharcholder organisaions
Interest meome on cash and cash
couivalente 252212 - - 1,877,082
Interest meome on imvestment
SOCUAHES = 65,250 1,875 - 65,502 <
Interest income on loans oo
CUSHOmers - 1,727,677 - 2 1952111 =
Interest expense on loans recemved (10,513,105 = (10,907 0440 (12,597,806 - (3,593,758)
[nterest expense on debr secuntics
issued (7,629,704) (60,590) (10,035,048 (5034.677) (63.594) (5.310.402)
Credit loss expenses = (359.113) - = (162,782} -
Ohther expenses — - 20554771 = = 25,403 550
Corporate income tax expense - = {2,202 454) - - 4,097 000
Key management remuneration
Key management remuneration comprises the following:
Twelve months ended
I December
2021 2020
Salanes and other short-term benefirs 167,210 110,292
Remuneration of the Board of Directors 32366 10,630
The Board of Directors administrative expenses 11,709 -
Social contributions 18,247 11,075
Total key management remuneration 229,532 131,997
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30. Capital adequacy

The Company mamntains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of the
Company’s capital 1s monitored using, among other measures, the ratios established by the NBREL

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company was in full compliance with the externally imposed capiral
requirements.

The Company's capital management policy 15 to ensure the compliance by the Company with externally imposed capital
requirements and maintain a credit rating and capital adequacy ratios, which ensure the sustainable operation of the Company
and maximize shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the nsk charactenstics of its acnvities.

NBEK requires that the organisations engaged in certain types of banking activity to mamntain 2 Tier | capital adequacy rano
(k1) of at least 6% of the assets; capital adequacy ratio (k1-2) in the amount of at least 6%6 of assers and dsk-weighted contingent
liabilities and commitments, and 2 total capital adequacy rano (k1-3) of at least 12% of the assets and contingent liabilities and
commitments weighted based on nsk and operational dsk.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company's capital adequacy ratios caleulated in accordance wath the
requirements of the NBRE were as follows:

31 December

3 December 2020

2021 (restated)

Tier 1 capital 261,475,207 141,018,451
Tier 2 capiral 8,695,040 18,603,885
Total capital 270,170,247 159,622,336
Risk-weighted assers 770,484 968 519,905,425
Contingent liabilitics and commitments 77,649,498 48,315,487
Operational risk 21,785,778 24,259,013
Capital adequacy rano (k1) 32479, 95 758
30.83% 24.82%

Capital adequacy rano (k1-3) 31.06% 26.94%

31. Subsequent events

On 2 January 2022 protests started in Western Kazakhstan related to an increase i the liquefied natural gas price from
6i) tenge to 120 tenge per litre. These protests spread to other cities and resulted in looting and loss of life. On 5 January 2022
the government declared a state of emergency. As a result of the above protests and state of emergency the President of
Kazakhstan has made certain public announcements regarding possible measures including additional taxes.

On 19 January 2022 the state of emergency was lifted. The Company is currently unable to quantify whar the impact, if any,
may be on the financial positon of any new measures the government may take or any impact from the effect on the
Kazakhstan cconomy as a result of the above protests and state of cmergency,

In February 2022, because of the military conflict between the Russian Federanon and Ukramne, a2 number of countres imposed
sanctions aganst the Russian Federation. The military conflict affects not only the economic activity of two countries but the
global economy as well. Asa result of sanctions, commeodity and food prices have nsen in many countries around the world,
the established links between supply of resources have been disrupted, inflation also affects the prices, and analysts also
forecast economic implications for the global industry.

In February 2022, the National Bank of Kazakhstan increased the base rate and as at the date of issue of the fnancial
statements the base rate 15 14.00% with a corndor of + /- 1%.

According to press releases from the National Bank of Kazakhstan, the rapidly changing geopolitical and external economic
environment in trading partner countrics and the unprecedented level of uncertainty reduce significantly the possibility to
make robust forecasts regarding the impact of the conflict on the economy of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Company is currently unable to quantfy the impact of the above cvents on the Company's operations and financial
position.

In Februasy the Company received a loan from the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan for the toral amount
of KZT 70,000,000 thousand beaning an interest rate of 0.01% per annum and maruring i 10 months to issue tranches for
financing the spong and works.
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